
Page 1 

 

 

 

AGENDA  
 
Meeting: Joint Strategic Economic Committee (SWLEP) 

Place:  Committee Room A - Council Offices, Monkton Park, 

Chippenham SN15 1ER 

Date: Thursday 13 April 2017 

Time: 9.30 am 
 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Kieran Elliott of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Trowbridge, BA14 8JN direct line 01225 718504 or email 
kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
All public reports referred to on this agenda are available on the Wiltshire Council 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk   . 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114 / 713115 
 

 

Membership: 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE Leader of Wiltshire Council 
Cllr David Renard Leader of Swindon Borough Council 
Cllr John Thomson Wiltshire Deputy Leader and Cabinet 

Member for Communities, Campuses, Area 
Boards and Broadband 

Cllr Russell Holland Swindon Deputy Leader and Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Corporate Services 

Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe Wiltshire Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development, Skills, Strategic Transport 
and Strategic Property 

Cllr Garry Perkins Swindon Cabinet Member for Economy, 
Regeneration and Skills 

 

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2 

 

 
Non-Voting Membership: 

Mr John Mortimer 
 
Mr Adam Schallamach 

Chairman of the Swindon and Wiltshire 
Local Enterprise Partnership (SWLEP) 
Vice-Chairman of the Swindon and 
Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership 
(SWLEP) 

 

 

Substitutes: 
Cllr Brian Ford Swindon Cabinet Member for Adults’ 

Health and Social Care 
Cllr Toby Sturgis Wiltshire Cabinet Member for Strategic 

Planning, Development Management, 
Strategic Housing, Operational Property 
and Waste 

Cllr Dick Tonge Wiltshire Cabinet Member for Finance 
Cllr Stuart Wheeler Wiltshire Cabinet Member for Hubs, 

Heritage and Arts, Governance and 
Support Services 

Cllr Oliver Donachie Swindon Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Homelessness 

 

RECORDING AND BROADCASTING NOTIFICATION 

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 

Council’s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv.  At the start of the meeting, the 

Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and 

sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council. 
 

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of 

those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes. 
 

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public. 
 

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 

Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 

from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 

accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 

relation to any such claims or liabilities. 
 

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 

available on the Council’s website along with this agenda and available on request. 

If you have any queries please contact Democratic Services using the contact details 

above. 

http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/


 
 

Page 3 

 

AGENDA 

Part I 

Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public. 

1   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies or substitutions for the meeting. 
 

2   Minutes (Pages 5 - 38) 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 14 February 2017. 
 
To receive the minutes of the SWLEP Board meeting from 25 January 2017. 
 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the relevant Standards Committee. 
 

4   Chairman's Announcements  

 To receive any announcements through the Chair. 
 

5   Public Participation  

 The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public. 
 
Statements 
If you would like to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this 
agenda, please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Up to 
3 speakers are permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes each on any agenda item. 
Please contact the officer named on the front of the agenda for any further 
clarification. 
 
Questions  
To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the 
Council received in accordance with the constitution. 
 
Those wishing to ask questions are required to give notice of any such 
questions in writing to the officer named on the front of this agenda no later than 
5pm on 6 April 2017 in order to be guaranteed of a written response. In order to 
receive a verbal response questions must be submitted no later than 5pm on 10 
April 2017. Please contact the officer named on the front of this agenda for 
further advice. Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman decides 
that the matter is urgent. 
 



 
 
 
 

 

Page 4 

 
 
 

Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior 
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website. 

6   SWLEP Governance Framework (Pages 39 - 94) 
 
To endorse the decision of the SWLEP Board in relation to the Governance 
Framework 

7   Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Commissioning Board Updates (Pages 
95 - 160) 
 
To receive highlight reports for each project. 

8   SWLEP SubGroup Update Reports (Pages 161 - 170) 
 
To receive updates on all SWLEP Subgroups 

9   European Structural and Investment Funds Programme 2014-2020 (Pages 
171 - 176) 

10   Forward Work Plan  

 To consider items to be received at future meetings, including regular updates 
on projects, ESIF and an update on Functional Economic Market Area 
Assessment and Strategic Housing Market Assessment. 

11   Date of the Next Meeting  

 To confirm the date of the next meeting as 28 June 2017. 
 

Part II 

Items during whose consideration it is recommended that the public should be 
excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information would be disclosed. 



 
 

 
JOINT STRATEGIC ECONOMIC COMMITTEE (SWLEP) 
MINUTES OF THE JOINT STRATEGIC ECONOMIC COMMITTEE (SWLEP) 
MEETING HELD ON 14 FEBRUARY 2017 AT COMMITTEE ROOM A - COUNCIL 
OFFICES, MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr David Renard (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr John Thomson, Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe, Cllr Garry Perkins, Cllr Oliver Donachie 
(Substitute - Part II), John Mortimer and Adam Schallamach 
  

 
1 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Russell Holland, who was substituted by 
Councillor Oliver Donachie. 
 

2 Minutes 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 December 2016 and the minutes of the 
SWLEP Board meeting held on 24 November 2016 were presented, and it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 15 
December 2016. 
 
To receive and note the minutes of the SWLEP Board.  
 

3 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

4 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 

5 Public Participation 
 
A letter had been received from the Campaign for the Protection of Rural England 
(CPRE). Details were provided to the committee and a response would be provided 
from the Chairman of the Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership, as 
attached. 
 

6 SWLEP Commissioning Board Highlight Reports 
The Committee received highlight reports and updates regarding all Local Growth 
Fund and other Local Enterprise Partnership projects as detailed in the agenda 
papers.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
 

 
 
 

 
The Committee sought additional details regarding progression of the projects, such 
as the Compulsory Purchase Order process concluding for the Swindon Bus 
Exchange project and whether the status of the project would be changed from Red 
for the next meeting, and also plans for proposals for the Chippenham Station Hub to 
be presented to the SWLEP Board with a view to a business case being considered 
in May 2017. Other issues discussed included ongoing discussions for a joint venture 
agreement to progressed with the Wichelstowe project, and that a paper would be 
produced for a working group regarding the output for the Higher Futures project. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the updates.  
 

7 Outcomes of Local Growth Deal Round 3 
 
The Committee was informed an announcement was expected from central 
government in the weeks following the meeting on the Local Growth Fund Round 3 
allocations, and that fuller updates would be provided to member as soon as was 
practicable. 
 

8 Summary of Funding Streams, to include LGF 1 and 2 profiling 
 
A report was received on the current financial status across all streams of Local 
Growth Funding along with explanations for variances between the actual spend and 
the baseline grant issued to the SWLEP. 
 
At its meeting in January 2017 the SWLEP had received the report along with plans 
to manage the spending for future years. There had been an underspend in 2015/16, 
and it was calculated there would be an overspend in 2016/17 to equalise the 
position. Full details on how this would be achieved were contained in the report and 
discussed. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To endorse the approach of the SWLEP Board at its meeting on 25 January 
2017 to manage the Local Growth Fund profiling. 
 

9 European Structural and Investment Funds (ESIF) Programme 2014-2020 
 
A report was received as detailed in the agenda papers on the latest developments in 
respect of the European Structural and Investment Funds Programme following a 
recent hiatus to calls after the EU Referendum, with local specifications for the next 
rounds of European Social Fund (ESF) and European Regional Development Fund 
(ERDF) calls in development. The advisory sub-committee to government would be 
meeting in April 2017. 
 
The Committee sought additional details from the reports, including update on the 
Rural Growth Programme and its successfully attended Rural Business Grants event 

Page 6



 
 

 
 
 

on 8 February to help rural businesses apply for grants. The Chairman of the SWLEP 
was in attendance and provided an update on the focus of investment for 
infrastructure, food and drink manufacturing, business development and other key 
areas. 
 
The Committee also welcomed the opportunity for it and the SWLEP to contact 
businesses that are supported to monitor the successes that occur. Other topics 
discussed included the LEADER programme, technical assistance and the difficulties 
of some businesses to meet specifications for some programmes. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update. 
 

10 Functional Economic Market Area Assessment (FEMAA)/ Strategic Housing 
Market Assessment (SHMA) Update 
 

An update report on the Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) and 
Functional Economic Market Area Assessment (FEMAA) was received as detailed in 
the agenda supplement following a meeting of the Joint Working Group on 7 
February 2017. 
 
The two local authorities are working together on a joint  evidence base to identify the 
level of housing and jobs that need to be planned for from 2016 through to 2036 to 
inform the review of both authorities’ local development plans. It was also stated the 
recent government housing white paper would need to be assessed to see if it had 
impact on the current plans for both authorities. 
 

Work to date on the SHMA had identified four housing market areas, centred on 
Trowbridge, Salisbury, Chippenham and Swindon. The FEMAA identified three 
functional economic market areas broadly corresponding to the Strategic Economic 
Plan of the SWLEP, along the Swindon/M4 corridor, A350/West Wiltshire towns and 
Salisbury/Amesbury/A30. It included projected future employment growth based on 
professional economic forecasts, identifying requirements per year for employment 
land. The housing and economic areas cross the boundaries of both authorities 
showing the need for further joint working in developing planning policies. 
 

The recommendation was for the Committee to endorse the approach to joint 
working, which would inform development of the Councils Local Development 
Schemes before the they were formally considered in Summer 2017. 
 
The Committee considered the options detailed in the report, including a single joint 
plan, a strategic only joint plan or the alignment of separate authority plans based on 
a joint evidence base and non-statutory joint framework, noting legal and policy 
requirements. It was confirmed each authority would still be responsible for its own 
plan under the recommended approach. Details were also sought on the findings in 
respect of employment areas and accessing land, the level of cooperation with 
neighbouring authorities, and the role of the SWLEP itself. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, it was, 

Page 7



 
 

 
 
 

Resolved: 
 
To:  
(i) Note and endorse the approach to joint working as outlined in the report;  
(ii) Agree that the Joint Working Group consider proposed changes to the Council’s 
respective LDSs to ensure a coordinated approach in order to make recommendations 
to the Council’s respective Cabinets;  
(iii) Agree that the Joint Working Group consider the extended scope of the joint non-
statutory framework and the appropriate joint approach to the Regulation 18 
consultations; and  
(iv) Agree that the final SHMA and FEMAA should be considered at JSEC in June 2017. 
 

11 SWLEP Assurance Framework 
 

The Assurance Framework sets out various governance arrangements for the 
Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership. Revised government guidance 
was published in November 2016, compliance with which is condition of Local 
Growth Fund 3 funding. A SWLEP working group had already been reviewing the 
assurance framework, and further revised them in order to comply with the new 
guidance. Among other changes it was proposed to increase the maximum size of 
the board to enable a more flexible business led approach. The section 151 officers 
and heads of legal services for both local authorities, the commissioning group of the 
SWLEP and the SWLEP Board all approved the proposed changes as detailed in the 
report. 
 
The Committee noted the proposed changes and following discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To endorse the decisions made by the SWLEP Board with regard to the revised 
assurance framework; and, 
 
To note the quick guide to the assurance framework document. 
 

12 Forward Work Plan and Date of Next Meeting 
 
The forward plan was received and noted. 
 
The date of the next meeting was scheduled for 6 April 2017, but members would be 
canvassed to see if another date would be more appropriate for all participants. 
 

13 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 

(Duration of meeting:  9.00  - 10.05 am) 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott, of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

Page 8



                  PROTECT WILTSHIRE 

The Campaign to Protect Rural England Wiltshire 
Registered Charity No 1134677 and a limited liability company with charitable status, company number 7127110 England and Wales 

Registered office as above 
 Working for a beautiful and living countryside, it is active locally and membership is open to all 

 
       

Patron: Her Majesty The Queen   46 New Park Street 

President: Mrs Sarah Rose Troughton, HM Lord-Lieutenant of Wiltshire  Devizes, Wiltshire 

Branch Chairman: Anne Henshaw                                                      SN10 1DT 

                         Tel: 01380 722157 

                                   Email: admin@cprewiltshire.org.uk  

Web site: www.cprewiltshire.org.uk 

 
 
 
 
 

JSEC meeting on 14 February 2017 9am at  Monkton Park, Committee Room A 

 

CPRE ask that the Minutes of the SWELP Board be not received for the following reasons: 

 

 

 

 

 

1. The Draft revised Assurance Framework, para 87, which allows for candidate schemes to be 

identified through SWELP running a formal call for schemes against the priorities in its 

strategic economic plan. 

 

 

2. Hitherto schemes have been identified through the Planning processes conducted by the 

Councils involving public consultation.  Where is the democratic process? 

 

3. Planning  is about social, environmental and economic issues, not just economic issues.  

Economic issues must be weighed against social and environmental through a consultative 

process. 

 

4. Such a major change should not be brought  about without full participation of all the 

Councillors in both Councils and wide public consultation. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
        Anne Henshaw 

Page 5

Minute Item 5

Page 9

mailto:admin@cprewiltshire.org.uk
http://www.cprewiltshire.org.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



 

 

 

JSEC 14 February 2017 

Response to CPRE Statement 
 

 

   
 

 

The aim of holding open calls for organisations, including the two unitary authorities, to 

come forward with projects they wish to develop is to diversify the range and nature of 

the projects funded by the Swindon and Wiltshire LEP.  The priorities of the strategic 

economic plan will form an essential element of the assessment criteria for projects.  

The two unitary authorities play an important role in constructing the strategic 

economic plan as their key priorities are included within it.  In addition, the Assurance 

Framework ensures that in response to the initial open call, each project should include 

“an outline of how the scheme relates to…the other relevant key plans and strategies 

such as Local Plans and Transport Plans” (paragraph 87, SWLEP Assurance Framework).    

 

The Assurance Framework requires projects to include “an outline of what consultation 

has taken place and what degree of consensus has been achieved” (para 87).  

 

The assessment procedures used by the SWLEP follow The Green Book Guidance issued 

by HM Treasury. 

 

There is an independent assessment of  all submitted projects at this stage and one 

element of the assessment is “Is the scheme likely to be publically acceptable and 

supported by key partners/stakeholders (and any evidence)?” (para 88).  The proposed 

projects move from an initial expression of interest, through strategic outline business 

case and assessment to outline business case and assessment and then final business 

case and assessment.  At all stages, consultation is built into the process and any 

statutory consultation processes and timescales are followed.  The detail is included in 

paras 94 to 134 of the Assurance Framework. 

 

As the proposed projects develop, the assessment criteria include social, environmental 

and economic issues as these are included in The Green Book Guidance. 

 

The use of open calls is not a major change which denies the democratic process.  The 

key transport and economic priorities of both Councils are included in the SWLEP’s 

strategic economic plan; the assessment criteria for projects uses the accepted wide 

base included in The Green Book; likely acceptability to the public and evidence of 

consensus are included in the criteria for assessment and all statutory consulation 

requirements are built into the project selection process. 

 

 

 

John Mortimer 

Chairman, SWLEP 

14 February 2017 

Page 7Page 11



 

 

 

JSEC 14 February 2017 

Response to CPRE Statement 
 

 

   
 

 

 

 

Page 8Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



 

 

 
Board Meeting  

25 January 2017 

Paper No. 1.3 
 

 

   
 

 

Public Participation 
 
From Mrs Charmian Spickernell, CPRE North Wilts & Swindon Group Committee 
Member 
 
To SWLEP Board 
 
 

The Assurance Framework, para 87 states. 

“To date, the majority of candidate schemes have been identified as part of the Strategic 

Economic Plan, Local Plan, and Local Transport Plan processes undertaken by Swindon 

Borough Council, Wiltshire Council and the SWLEP.  Henceforth candidate schemes will be 

identified by the SWLEP running a formal open call for schemes against its priorities in its 

strategic economic plan. In advance of a call, the SWELP will publish the full methodology and 

criteria against which schemes will be assessed ……   Broadly each scheme will need to meet 

the following criteria:” 

 

The criteria includes 

“Consultation and public acceptability: an outline of what consultation has taken place and the 

degree of consensus that has been achieved.” 

 

 

Question One 

 

Will the Assurance Framework be debated in both Councils before it is adopted? 

 

Response 

 

The Assurance Framework will be discussed by the Joint Strategic Economic Committee 

(JSEC), which is a joint committee of both councils, at its meeting on 14 February 2017.  There 

is no current intention to debate the Assurance Framework in full Council meetings as an 

additional measure by either Swindon Borough Council or Wiltshire Council.  

 

 

Question Two 

 

Will the methodology and criteria cover social and environmental issues as well as economic 

ones? 

 

Response 

 

Appraisal of business cases involves a range of criteria including social and environmental 

impacts.  The aim of calls for projects will be to attract projects which will aid economic 

growth. 

Page 23



 

 

 
Board Meeting  

25 January 2017 

Paper No. 1.3 
 

 

   
 

 

 

 

Question Three 

 

Will there be statutory consultation? How will the public be involved and how will their 

comments be taken into account? 

 

Response 

 

The methodology will include seeking information from prospective scheme developers about 

the extent of public support for their project.  If a scheme requires statutory consultation then 

that will need to happen and follow the standard procedures for such a consultation. 

 

Question Four 

 

Will public transport schemes take priority? 

 

Response 

 

The priorities of the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) will determine the selected projects and 

public transport will be part of that mix.  At this stge, there is no thinking about giving an 

aspect of a SEP priority greater weighting than something else. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



 

 

 
Board Meeting  

25  January 2017 

Supplementary Questions 
 

 

1 
 

 

Supplementaty Questions Received at Board Meeting  

 

1. It is noted there are Government Guidelines for Assurance Frameworks and that each 

LEP writes its own Assurance Framework. 

 

Where is the government guideline that states LEPs should take over the planning of 

road schemes from the Councils without this being debated in the Full Councils?  If 

schemes are not debated in full Council, could there be a perception that those in 

position of power may be tempted to follow their own agenda? 

 

Response 

 

The SWLEP is not taking over the planning of raod schemes from Councils.  Its role is 

to promote transport improvements which would assist sustainable economic growth. 
 

2. Given the stated aim to attract projects that will aid economic growth, how will social 

and environmental issues be resolved?  Will each scheme have an environmental impact 

assessment?  Will people who will be affected by the scheme be consulted and their 

concerns addressed? 
 

Response 

 

The assessment of schemes includes an appraisal of value for money. 

 
3. When assessing schemes will the question be asked “Can it be made to work without 

incurring further costs? 

 

Response 

 

Please refer to the answer to written Question 2. 

 

4. Will the seeking of information by prospective scheme developers be perceived to be 

impartial? 
 

Response 

 

Scheme developers have access to a range of information in the public domain.  LEP 

supported schemes are discussed in public session of the LEP Board unless there are 

matters of commercial confidence. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25



 

 

 
Board Meeting  

25  January 2017 

Supplementary Questions 
 

 

2 
 

5. Who will conduct the statutory consultations if LEPs have taken over the identification 

of transport schemes? 

 

Response 

 

Please refer to the answer to Supplementary Question 1. 

 

6. Until LEPs are subject to the Freedom of Information Act, how can it be known that 

the assurance given by LEPs to Ministers over the money they receive are being 

honoured? 

 

Response 

 

SWLEP complies with the terems of the Freedom of information Act. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



Chippenham Station Hub 

 

P
age 27



SEP Submission 

• concept masterplan 

produced in partnership 

between the LEP, WC, and 

NR 
 

• enhancing car parking 
 

• meeting needs of growing 

town 
 

• creating sense of arrival 
 

• improving commercial 

attractiveness  
 

• aligning with the 

electrification programme 
 

• aligning with masterplan for 

Chippenham 
 

• aligning with partner 

objectives 
 

• Costed at £34m 

P
age 28



DFT Retained Scheme 

• Scheme successful in being awarded conditional funding 
 

• Retained Scheme - Further requirements to be met prior to receiving full 

grant allocation 
 

• Development of a business case which takes into account the 

methodologies used by central government and clearly shows economic 

impact and benefit  
 

• DFT agreed to allocate £350k for project development 
 

• Needed to revise scheme – local changes (Langley Park, Hathaway Retail 

Park, Wiltshire College, etc.). 
 

P
age 29



Project Development 

• Support the enhancement of current 

car parking provision around 

Chippenham station 
 

• Releasing land for development 

(retail, commercial and residential) 
 

• Public realm improvements by 

creating a station square 
 

• Access improvements between the 

station and the town centre 
 

• Address north south severance 

issues created by the railway 

 

P
age 30



D1 - Residential 

Development 

A/B - Underground 

car park with 

retail/office 

development above 

C1/C2 - Small 

scale 

commercial 

developments 

D3 - Remains 

as surface car 

park 

Public realm 

and access 

improvements 

P
age 31



D1 - Residential 

Development 

A/B - Underground 

car park with 

retail/office 

development above 

C1/C2 - Small 

scale 

commercial 

developments 

D3 - Remains 

as surface car 

park 

Public realm 

and access 

improvements 

P
age 32



Viability Assessment 

• Development mix - office, retail and residential mix 
 

• Residential vs Office 
 

• Parking solutions – underground, surface, multi story 
 

• Affordable housing element 
 

• Expectations of residual land value from land owners 
 

• Return on Investment / attracting a development partner 

High level analysis of SOBC scheme completed by GVA 

Bilfinger indicates further work is required to improve 

viability. Focus will centre on: 

P
age 33



Delivery 

• Business Case  2017/18  

• Planning application   2017/18 

• Start of works   2018/19 

• Completion    2019/20 

 

DFT Requirements/approval 

• Compliant Business Case indicating the project is value for 

money. 

 

P
age 34



GWR Proposal 

• GWR investing in ticket gatelines 

in 2017. Opportunity to complete 

gatelines as part of wider station 

improvement with improved 

ticket office, retail, and access 
 

• Station improvements are a key 

part of the Hub project and the 

proposal secures their early 

delivery – getting the ball rolling 

on the Hub project at same time 
 

• Joint funding package proposed 

using retained scheme funding 

(part of existing allocation) 
 

P
age 35



Outputs 
Station 

Improvements 

1. Gatelines 

2. Ticket office 

relocated  

3. Retail unit 

relocated 

Access 

Improvements 

4. North side lift 

5. Forecourt works 

 

4 

5 

P
age 36



Business Case 

• DfT has agreed in principle to 

joint funding using retained 

scheme funding 

 

• A standalone Business Case 

for SWLEP, but not DfT, 

approval will be required 

 

• The Business Case would 

still follow the SWLEP 

Assurance Framework. A 

summary of the 5 case 

approach is to the right.  

Five Cases  Scheme Contribution 

Strategic 

Case 

• Station improvements will be a catalyst to successful 

regeneration of the area (eg Exeter Central). 

• Improved security, retail and customer experience will 

help demonstrate market and improve Hub viability. 

• Reduced severance across the railway with a new lift 

on the public footbridge and improved access to the 

station itself. 

Economic 

Case 

• WebTAG compliant appraisal to be undertaken and 

independently assessed 

Financial 

Case 

• Funding package of £1.1m from GWR and circa £2m 

from retained scheme funding. 

• Approx. £1.9m from GWR and LGF for station 

improvements in 2017/18. 

• Approx. £1.1m from LGF towards access 

improvements – circa £0.2m towards design in 

2017/18; remainder in 2018/19. 

Management 

Case 

• GWR will manage the design and implementation of 

the works. Delivery of station improvements in 

2017/18. Access improvements follow in 2018/19. 

Commercial 

Case 

• Funding agreements will be entered with GWR in two 

stages as costs become clear. 

• GWR will undertake procurement of consultants and 

contractors. 

P
age 37



Process 

Business Case 

produced for joint 

GWR / LEP phase 

 

Review by ITA 

prior to 

submission to LEP  

 

Submission to 

SWLEP 

 

 

Review by 

SWLEP Board 

 

 

SWLEP Approvals 

and engagement 

with DFT  

 

DFT Approval and 

release of funding  

 

 

P
age 38



 

 

 

 
 

Joint Strategic Economic 

Committee  

13 April 2017 
 

 

 

Security Level: Confidential  Restricted  Unclassified  Commercially 
Sensitive   

 

Meeting & Date: Joint Strategic Economic Committee – Thursday, 13 April 2017 

Subject: SWLEP Governance Framework 

Attachments: Final draft SWLEP Governance Framework 090317 

Quick Guide 210217 

Table of changes 280217 

Author: Debby Skellern Total no of sheets: 
 

Total:  55 pages: 

Cover sheet – 3 pages 

Governance 

Framework -44 pages 

Quick Guide - 4 pages 

Table of changes - 4 
pages 

 

Papers are provided for:    Approval     Discussion     Information   

 

Summary & Recommendation: 

 

Summary 

 

The Governance Framework sets out the policies and procedures which the SWLEP has in 

place to guide the way the Board and its staff operate.  The Governance Framework has been 

updated to reflect changes to existing policies and the inclusion of new policies which have 

been drawn up since 2015.  It comprises nine sections which will be published as separate 

documents on the SWLEP website: 

A Role and governance principles F Assurance framework 

B Board constitution G Accountable body agreement 

C Conflict of interest policy H Code of conduct 

D Scheme of delegation  I Transparency code 

E Finance and commissioning policy   

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

 
 

Joint Strategic Economic 

Committee  

13 April 2017 
 

 
Section F of the Governance Framework is the SWLEP Assurance Framework.  The latter 

was approved as a standalone document by the SWLEP Board at its January 2017 meeting and 

is not submitted again as part of this pack of papers. 

 

The Governance Framework has been reviewed and revised by the Officer Working Group 

and has been signed off by the Section 151 Officers at Swindon Borough Council and 

Wiltshire Council.  The Legal Services teams at both local authorities have also advised on its 

revision.  This final amended draft of the Governance Framework has also been discussed at 

the SWLEP Commissioning Group on 8 March 2017 and at the SWLEP Board meeting on 22 

March 2017.   

 

In addition, a brief guide to the Governance Framework has been written for use by Board 

Members and the public and will be posted on the SWLEP website once the Governance 

Framework has been approved. 

 

SWLEP Board meeting 22 March 2017 

At the SWLEP Board meeting, three queries were raised with respect to the Governance 

Framework.  These were: 

 

1) instances when there would be vacant positions on the Board resulting in private 

sector membership falling below 70% whilst recruitment was undertaken and whether 

the Board would be in breach of the Governance Framework. 

 

The view at the meeting was that there might be instances when vacancies on the 

Board meant that private sector membership fell temporarily below 70%.  As long as 
the Board was quorate when it met and took decisions, this would not be an issue. 

 

2. the Conflict of Interest Policy and whether Board members should be excluded from 

taking part in discussions as well as not being able to vote as set out in Section C 

paragraph 6 of the Governance Framework: ‘A Board member shall not vote or 

participate in discussions on any matter which relates directly to an organisation or project in 

respect of which the Board member has a Relevant Interests, or where the matter may have 

a particular impact on such an organisation or project.’ 

 

The Board asked that the advice of the Legal Team be sought again on this issue.  A 

response is awaited. 

 

3. the declaration of acceptance of appointment to the SWLEP Board and how this 

would be countersigned by the Proper Officer of the SWLEP. 

 

The Proper Officer of the SWLEP would be asked to attend a Board session and 

witness any signatures required. 

 

Page 40



 

 

 

 
 

Joint Strategic Economic 

Committee  

13 April 2017 
 

 
Once a response from the Legal Advice has been submitted regarding query 2 above, the 

Board agreed to review the advice and vote on the adoption of the Governance Framework 

by email rather than waiting until the May 2017 Board meeting. 

 

 

Recommendations 

 

The JSEC is asked to: 

 

1. Note that the advice of the Legal Team has been sought regarding the 

Conflict of Interest Policy paragraph 6 and a response is awaited. 

2. To endorse the decision of the Board. 

3. Note the Quick Guide to the Governance Framework document for use by 

Board Members and for posting on the SWLEP website. 

 

Page 41



 

1 

Quick Guide: revised SWLEP Governance 

Framework  

M\arch 2017 

What is the Governance Framework and why does the SWLEP need one? 

The Governance Framework is a collection of policies and documents which sets out the 

processes and structures within which the SWLEP Board, its Subgroups, working groups 

and staff operate so it is clear to everyone: what the purpose of the SWLEP is; which 

organisations can sit on its Board; and how it works, makes decisions and awards funding in 

an open and transparent way.  The Governance Framework comprises the following 

sections: 

A Role and governance principles F Assurance framework 

B Board constitution G Accountable body agreement 

C Conflict of interest policy H Code of conduct 

D Scheme of delegation  I Transparency code 

E Finance and commissioning policy   

 

A. Role and governance principles 

This section sets out what the role of the SWLEP is in terms of delivering economic growth 

and job creation; its strategic objectives and the lists the range of activities it will undertake 

from strategy development and research and analysis through to securing and administering 

grant funding.   

The SWLEP’s governance principles are that it: 

1. operates in accordance with its role and the SWLEP Assurance Framework (Section 

F). 

2. pursues activities which add value, and in particular activities which do not 

unnecessarily duplicate the work of the members of the partnership or the roles of 

other organisations with similar aims. 

3. effectively identifies, and appropriately represents the views and needs of business in 

the SWLEP area. 

4. effectively identifies and appropriately takes into account the views of other 

stakeholders (Section B, paragraph 2b).  

5. makes effective use of the resources available to it and accounts appropriately for 

that use as set out in the SWLEP Accountable Body Agreement (Section H); and 

6. is accountable for its performance.  

Page 42



 

2 

B. Board Constitution 

This section sets out the roles and responsibilities of the SWLEP Board; its Chair; the 

Secretariat, which is the human resource working on behalf of the SWLEP and is drawn 

from a number of organisations; and the relationship between the SWLEP Director and the 

SWLEP Chair.  The Board has a minimum of 14 and a maximum of 20 Members and is 

constituted to ensure that it is business led with its Chair and at least 70% of all Members 

representing the business community.  Board members are appointed for 3 years, which can 

be extended, although the leaders of the two unitary authorities, the Commander of the 

Military HQ South West and the Education Sector representative are permanent members. 

The constitution sets out: how often the Board meets and the notice given for dates and the 

publication of papers; who can vote and attend the meetings; and how decisions are made 

and actions delegated.  The Board makes decisions on the basis of consensus but if it finds it 

cannot do so, it will take a vote.  Wiltshire Council acts as the SWLEP’s accountable body 

and its role and responsibilities are set out in Section H. 

C.  Conflicts of interest 

This policy covers a range of items including the need for a register of interests for Board 

Members and the frequency in which this register will be updated.  For example if a Board 

Member has ‘relevant interests’ in a project or organisation to be discussed at a Board 

Meeting, they are not allowed to vote or participate in the discussion.  Board Members 

need to declare any interests they have on agenda items to be discussed at each meeting. 

The appendix to the conflicts of interest policy sets out a ‘declaration of acceptance of 

appointment’ form which Board Members will be required to sign from April 2017. 

D. Scheme of delegation 

This section of the Governance Framework sets out the day-to-day management and 

standing authorisation arrangements of the Chair and SWLEP Director as well as how 

significant issues will be reported to the Board.  It also explains how the Board may delegate 

authority to the Chair or a Board working group and the requirements for reporting back 

to the Board on delegated activity. 

E. Finance and commissioning policy 

This policy sets out who can authorise or incur expenditure on projects and activities.  

Where a specific budget has been agreed by the Board for a project or activity, the Chair, 

or Vice Chair in their absence, may incur or authorise expenditure with the agreement of 

the Section 151 Officer of the Accountable Body.  Sub-groups may also be awarded a 

budget to undertake activity or project work and they are authorised to spend up to the 

Page 43



 

3 

Figure 2: Governance structure for the Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioning 
Group Secretariat 

SWLEP Board 

Skills and 

Talent 

Transport 

Infrastructure 

Digital 

Capability 

Place Shaping 

Business 

Development 

Joint Strategic 

Economic 

Committee 

Joint Scrutiny 

Task Group 

ESIF sub-

Committee 

Management support to 

the SWLEP Board 

Delivery and 

Performance 

Team 

P
age 44



 

4 

value of the budget on this agreed work.  In addition, The SWLEP Director, Chair or Vice 

Chair can authorise or incur any one-off item of expenditure up to the value of £10,000 

which relates to the management of the SWLEP without the approval from the Board or 

any other person.  This policy also sets out how unitary authority resources can be used in 

terms of staff supporting the work of the SWLEP.  Where external resources are to be 

commissioned, the SWLEP will work within the procurement and contract rules of 

Wiltshire Council acting as its accountable body.  Grant funding is held by the SWLEP’s 

Accountable Body; the Assurance Framework (Section F) sets out how grant agreements 

are made including how applications, evaluation and prioritisation takes place.  

F. Assurance Framework 

The Assurance Framework is required so that is it clear to everyone: how the SWLEP 

agrees its strategy; what it wants to deliver; how it awards funding and how it manages 

delivery.  The Assurance Framework also sets out who has the power to make decisions, 

sign off agreements, manage risk and monitor delivery in relation to delegated decision 

making and funding.  Essentially it is the operational manual for the SWLEP.   

G. Accountable Body Agreement 

This is a legal agreement which sets out the roles and responsibilities of Wiltshire Council 

acting as the accountable body for the SWLEP and Swindon Borough Council and associated 

matters in relation to the application and allocation of the devolved government funding to 

relevant projects and programmes. As such it covers a range of issues such as: financial 

arrangements; record keeping; freedom of information requests; data protection; 

confidentiality; equality; social value; environmental performance; termination; and disputes. 

H. Code of Conduct 

This section sets out that members of the SWLEP Board, its Subgroups and officers will 

abide by the 7 principles of public life as detailed in Section 28 of the Localism Act 20111.  

These principles are: selflessness; integrity; objectivity; accountability; openness; honesty; 

and leadership.  In addition, the way in which gifts and hospitality and complaints and whistle 

blowing are handled are also covered in this section. 

I. Transparency code 

The Government’s Transparency Code is published annually and sets out the expectations 

of local authorities in publishing information and data.  As an unincorporated partnership the 

SWLEP is not legally obliged to comply with the code however the SWLEP has agreed that 

it shall comply with the spirit of the Local Government Transparency Code 20152. 

                                                           
1 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/section/28/enacted 
2 Subject to approval of the Board at its meeting on 22 March 2017 

Page 45



SWLEP Governance Framework amendments 
 
The following table highlights the main changes which have been made to the Governance Framework 2015 as part of the 2016/17 revision.  
 

2015 Framework Amendment reference in 2017 Framework Justification 

Introduction 

New section An introduction to the framework has been included  Needed as the breadth of the Governance 
Framework has been extended from the 2015 
draft 

Section A: Role and Governance principle 

General comment The terms of reference section and the governance principles 
sections have been combined.  The terms of reference text has 
been redrafted to reflect current strategic objectives, 
performance and activities. 

Putting the two together was more logical and 
made one coherent section. 
. 

Section 5.2 Wording amended regarding unnecessary duplication with 
organisations with similar aims. 

Clearer wording  

Section 5.6 Reference to BEIS annual conversation included Greater clarity 

Section 5.6.c.v Reference to SEP included Updated information available 

Section B: Board Constitution 

Definitions  Para d, the SWLEP is defined Greater clarity 

Roles and responsibilities Section reworded around the production of the SEP, reporting 
and reviewing progress and assuring compliance with the 
Assurance Framework.   
Annual Report deadline amended to 'agreed by July each 
year'.   
Para 8 added regarding Board financial responsibilities and 
cross references within the framework added.  
Para 10 Reference to the Chair’s job description added.   
Para 11-13 Job titles updated 
Para 14 Board membership changed to reflect agreement of 
Board at its January 2017 meeting.   
Para 15 added regarding a breach of the conflict of interest 
policy, 
Para 16 Commissioning Group wording added 

Clarity over processes which are in operation 
now. 
 
To reflect agreed new timeline 
 
Greater clarity 
 
Greater clarity 
To reflect the Assurance Framework wording 
Updated information  
 
More robust policy 
 
Greater clarity 

  

P
age 46



2015 Framework Amendment reference in 2017 Framework Justification 

Board meetings Para 18 amended to reflect timescales agreed i.e. 4 weeks not 
one month and where meetings are convened at shorter 
notice, that they will be publicised as soon as possible. 
Para 20 amended as Board meetings are held in public 
 
Para 21.a new bullet added setting out need to show the 
purpose of Board papers e.g. approval, information etc. 
Para 21 c bullet 2 wording added regarding restricted from the 
public information 
Para 21 d reference to Secretariat removed and Board sub-
groups and any other Board groups as appropriate added 
Para 22 b ‘to support democratic accountability’ added 
Para 22 c amended wording to make nominated representative 
text clearer enabling para d to be deleted 
Para 22 f Director not secretariat to be notified 
Para 22g amended to reflect ‘individuals in attendance’ not 
‘observers’. 
Para 22i Reference to Assurance Framework added 
Para 22l deleted as voting is covered elsewhere 
Para 23 Minutes to published within 14 clear working days 

To reflect Assurance Framework wording 
 
 
Clarity over processes in operation and to 
reflect Assurance Framework. 
To reflect current practice 
 
To reflect wording in the Assurance 
Framework regarding restrictions 
More collective wording used and easier to 
read 
Greater clarity of the role of Observers 
Easier and clearer to understand 
 
Needs a named responsible individual 
To reflect terminology now in use 
 
Reflect Assurance Framework wording 
Removal of duplicated text 
To reflect timing in Assurance Framework 

Decision making and 
delegation 

Para 25 Wording added from ‘Where the Board…to reflect the 
role of Director to report to the Board. 
Paras 28 and 32 Board working group composition amended 
to reflect the Board membership arrangements of the 
subgroups. 
Para 33 subgroups to report to the Board as required rather 
than every meeting 

Clarity over roles and responsibilities 
Updated membership arrangements reflected. 
 
 
To give flexibility over the agenda when 
required 

Section C: conflict of interest policy 

Definitions Para 1 ‘Significant’ removed because there are different 
thresholds in place at Swindon Borough Council and Wiltshire 
Council. 

Greater clarity and consistency 

General Para 3 new wording added ’ This includes acting in the interest 
of the area as a whole and not according to sectoral or 
geographic interests of their member organisations’  

More robust policy  

P
age 47



2015 Framework Amendment reference in 2017 Framework Justification 

Register of interests Paras 4-5 ‘Secretariat’ replaced with ‘Director’ Needs a named responsible individual 

Breach of the policy This is a new section added to strengthen the policy More robust policy 

Declaration of acceptance of 
appointment 

This is a new section added to strengthen the policy More robust policy 

Gifts and hospitality and 
complaints and whistle 
blowing 

These sections have been deleted and are dealt with under the 
Code of Conduct section. 

More appropriate location for text 

Appendix 1 Declaration of 
acceptance 

Declaration of acceptance of appointment to the Board drafted 
and added 

More robust policy 

Section D: Scheme of delegation 

Standing authorities Paras 3-6 ‘Secretariat’ replaced with ‘Director regarding day to 
day management 

Needs a named responsible individual 

Individual delegations Para 8 added whereby the Chair can suspend a Board 
Member who is subject to a complaint pending the outcome of 
an investigation 
Paras 10-14 Commissioning Group replaced with Board 
working group 

Greater clarity and more robust policy 
 
To reflect a wider range of groups now in 
operation 

Authorisation of action Para 17 assurance framework reference added to replace 
Management Framework.   
Para 17 Sentence relating to the action of the Secretariat 
removed. 

Updated terminology 
 
Dealt with in the Constitution section 

Section E: Finance and commissioning policy 

Standing authorisations Para 1 ‘with the agreement of the Section 151 Officer of the 
Accountable Body’ added 

More robust policy 

Use of local authority 
resources 

Para 11 Reference to constitution added Cross referencing for greater clarity 

Commissioning other 
external resources 

Para 12 Reference to compliance with the procurement and 
contract rules of the Accountable Body added 

Greater clarity 

Disbursement of grant 
funding 

Paras 13-14 Section added Greater clarity 

  

P
age 48



2015 Framework Amendment reference in 2017 Framework Justification 

Terms of Reference 

Whole section The Terms of Reference section has been deleted and merged 
with the former Governance Principles section to produce the 
new Section A: Role and Governance Principles 

The terms of reference were out of date and 
have been rewritten. 

 

Section F Accountable Body Agreement 

New section Accountable Body Agreement terms included as a new section 
in the Governance Framework 

Greater transparency 

Section G: Code of conduct 

New section Worded to reflect the Assurance Framework guidance 
regarding adherence to the principles of public life. 
Gifts and hospitality and complaints and whistle blowing 
sections moved here 

Government requirement 
 
More appropriate section 

Section H: Transparency code 

New section New section drafted by legal Statement required 

 
Written by 
Debby Skellern 
Programme Manager – Policy 
Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership 
28/02/17 

P
age 49



 

  

Governance Framework 

April 2017 

  

Page 50



 

  

Draft SWLEP Governance Framework 

Document History 

Version Dates Notes 

0 2015 Katherine Hathaway added comments whilst on secondment 

1 11/08/16 DS amends to address some of KH comments and to align document to draft 

Assurance Framework 2016. 

Heads of Terms section added  

2 16/11/16 Code of Conduct added 

Heads of Terms amended to ‘Accountable Body Agreement’ 

3 06/12/16 

 

 

15/12/16 

 

Amends throughout to align with revised draft Assurance Framework V3.11 

and address more queries raised by KH. 

 

PB/DS meeting revisions.  Document circulated to Swindon Borough Council 

and Wiltshire Council Officers for comments and suggested amendments 

4 10/01/12 

11/01/17 

12/01/17 

No amends submitted SBC at this stage.  Referred to legal team to comment 

Amends and comments received from Wiltshire Council reviewed by PB/DS 

Circulated to Officers in Finance and Legal Services for review and comment 

5 20/02/17 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22/02/17 

 

 

Amended version to reflect: 

Amends during the conference call with S151 Officers and Heads of Legal 

Services on 23 Jan.  

Follow on meeting IG and AW on 31 Jan. 

Additional wording in section C para 13 and inclusion of Appendix 1 to that 

section as suggested by AW on 6 Feb. 

Wording supplied by AW for section J re transparency code. 

Revised Section F Terms of Reference by PB/DS now merged with Section A 

as SWLEP role and governance principles. 

Sent to ST/IG for final legal sign off 

5a 010317 Technical proof, minor edits to spacing, layout, paragraph references.   

Additional amends to: 

Section B para 22K 

Section C Appendix 1 Proper Officer 

Page 51



 

  

Section D Para 13 amended to reflect Section B para 28 

Re-sent to ST/IG for final legal sign off 

5a 080317 Commissioning Group sign off to go to the Board 

Final 

draft 

090317 Formatted onto SWLEP template 

 

File Name Final draft SWLEP Governance Framework 090317 

Original Author(s) DAC Beachcroft LLP 2013 Document no: 112678868 

Current Author(s) Debby Skellern (SWLEP) 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

Page 52



 

  

Governance Framework  

 

Introduction  

The Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership (SWLEP) is a non-statutory 

partnership between the public and private sectors, established to play a central role in 

determining local economic priorities and undertaking activities to drive economic growth 

and the creation of local jobs.  The SWLEP is a partnership between Swindon Borough 

Council, Wiltshire Council, businesses in the area and the Military, with representatives 

from all these organisations on its Board.  The SWLEP is able to access government funding 

to channel investment into the area and in particular to support its strategic objectives in 

skills and talent, transport infrastructure, digital capability, place-shaping and business 

development.   

 

The Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership (SWLEP) Governance Framework 

comprises: 

 

A. Role and governance principles 

B. Board constitution 

C. Conflict of interest policy 

D. Scheme of delegation  

E. Finance and commissioning policy 

F. Assurance Framework 

G. Accountable Body agreement 

H. Code of conduct 

I. Transparency code 

  

Page 53



 

  

A. Role and governance principles  
 

1. Purpose  

The Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership (SWLEP) was established in 2011 

with the aim of stimulating growth in the economy across the Swindon and Wiltshire area.  

In part it aims to do this by playing a central role in determining local economic priorities 

and undertaking activities to drive economic growth and the creation of local jobs. It is a 

primary partnership between the business community and the two local authorities; 

Swindon Borough Council and Wiltshire Council. 

 

The role of the Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership is to ‘provide the clear 

vision and strategic leadership to drive sustainable private sector-led growth and make a 

significant contribution to economic growth and job creation’1 in the SWLEP area by:  

 

 Ensuring that strategies for achieving economic growth and job creation within the 

area reflect the needs of business; and  

 Driving the successful implementation of those strategies through engagement with 

local and central government, business, potential investors and others.  

 

2. Strategic Objectives 

The SWLEP has five strategic objectives (January 2016): 

 

1. Skills and talent - we need an appropriately skilled and competitive workforce to 

achieve our growth ambitions;  

2. Transport infrastructure improvements - we need a well-connected, reliable and 

resilient transport system to support economic and planned development growth at 

key locations; 

3. Digital capability - we need to deliver excellence in digital connectivity and cyber 

transformation to achieve business growth, innovative public services and influence 

societal change; 

4. Place-shaping - we need to build the infrastructure required to deliver our planned 

growth and regenerate our city and town centres, and improve our visitor and 

cultural offer; and 

5. Business development - we need to strengthen the competitiveness of small and 

medium sized businesses and attract a greater share of foreign and domestic 

investment into the area. 

                                                           
1
 Local growth: realising every place’s potential, HM Government 28 October 2010, page 12 

Page 54



 

  

3. Performance  

The SWLEP’s performance measures are set out in its Strategic Economic Plan which is 

regularly reviewed.   Key drivers are to: 

 Increase the GVA of the area as a whole and in each of the local authority areas 

covered by the SWLEP;  

 Create new high value and highly skilled jobs within the area and in each of the local 

authority areas covered by the LEP; and 

 Identify housing needs. 

 

In this context ‘GVA’ refers both to productivity and the size of the economy.  

 

4.  Activities 

The activities which the SWLEP will undertake, in respect of the Swindon and Wiltshire 

area and in pursuance of the overall aims and priorities, will include:  

 

 Investigating and reporting on the following through research, analysis and 

engagement with business, the unitary authorities and others:  

o the type and profile of business activity;  

o training, education and skill levels amongst the workforce and potential 

workforce; 

o the type and profile of skills provision;  

o the needs of business, i.e. conditions or actions which are likely to encourage 

growth in existing areas or development of new areas 

o the likely impact on business of particular policies, strategies or events  

 Developing strategy itself and providing input into and monitoring strategy and policy 

developed by others, e.g. local and central government;  

 Identifying and securing sources of funding which are aligned with the SWLEP’s aims 

and activities as set out in the Strategic Economic Plan; 

 Administering and/or providing grants or other funding for activities likely to 

contribute to economic growth and job creation;  

 Promoting the benefits of the SWLEP area as a location for the expansion and 

creation of businesses and inward investment through engagement and provision of 

information; 

 Providing information about strategies for economic growth and job creation, skills 

provision, funding and other support available for businesses and investors, and 

other activities aimed at achieving economic growth and creating jobs;  

 Identifying additional opportunities for the UAs and other bodies to provide support 

Page 55



 

  

for economic growth and job creation, including identifying land or other resources 

which may be made available to support business growth or inward investment; and  

 Participating in regional and national LEP networks and activity. 

 

5. Governance principles 

The LEP should be governed so as to ensure that it:  

 

1. Operates in accordance with its Assurance Framework (Section F). 

2. Pursues activities which add value, and in particular activities which do not unnecessarily 

duplicate the work of the members of the partnership or the roles of other 

organisations with similar aims. 

3. Effectively identifies, and appropriately represents the views and needs of business in the 

SWLEP area. 

4. Effectively identifies and appropriately takes into account the views of other 

stakeholders (Section B, paragraph 2b).  

5. Makes effective use of the resources available to it and accounts appropriately for that 

use as set out in the SWLEP Accountable Body Agreement (Section G). 

6. Is accountable for its performance, through: 

a. Clear decision-making by the Board;  

b. Self-assessment by the Board of its own performance, including regular 

monitoring of progress, annual performance review through the Department 

of Business Energy and Industrial Strategy’s Annual Conversation, and 

relevant benchmarking against other LEPs; and 

c. Appropriate transparency through public reporting of:  

i. Governance arrangements and the Assurance Framework 

ii. Decisions 

iii. Planned and completed activities 

iv. Engagement with business and stakeholders 

v. Progress against the delivery of the Strategic Economic Plan. 

vi. Scrutiny of its operation by the Joint Scrutiny Task Group. 

7. Is able to meet or respond quickly to any requirements or pre-conditions set by central 

government with regard to transparency, accountability and robust governance.  

  

Page 56



 

  

B.  Board Constitution  
  

1. The Governance Framework may be amended by the Board at any time under the 

decision-making processes set out in this Constitution.  

 

Definitions 

2. In this document:  

 

a. "Unitary Authorities" refers to the local authority members of the SWLEP, 

Swindon Borough Council and Wiltshire Council; 

b. "stakeholders" means any person or organisation likely to be directly affected by 

or interested in the activities of the SWLEP, including in particular the Unitary 

Authorities and employers, businesses, enterprises and other persons or 

organisations operating or likely to operate within or otherwise concerned with 

the economy in the LEP area; 

c. "external resource" means resources (including human resource) other than the 

resources within the SWLEP Board and Secretariat.   

d. “The SWLEP” means the SWLEP Board plus the operation of its activities 

through the Secretariat.   

 

Roles and responsibilities 

3. The Board is responsible for the SWLEP's performance in accordance with the its Role 

and Governance Principles (Section A).  In particular the Board shall:  

 

a. produce a Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) which is reviewed in line with 

government guidance; 

b. produce an annual report reviewing  progress against delivery of the SEP 

including a financial overview and setting out priority actions for the forthcoming 

year; and  

c. ensure that the SWLEP complies with its Governance Framework and the terms 

of the Assurance Framework. 

 

4. In making decisions as to actions to be undertaken by the SWLEP and the allocation of 

funding and other resources to activities and projects.   

  

5. The LEP’s annual report shall be agreed by the Board by 31 July each year.  Prior to 

agreeing the work plan the Board shall carry out appropriate consultation with 

stakeholders and the Secretariat with regard to proposed activities and associated 

resource implications.  

Page 57



 

  

 

6. The Board shall provide information and co-operation as reasonably requested by the 

Unitary Authorities to enable them to carry out appropriate review and scrutiny 

activities in respect of matters relating to the SWLEP.  

 

7. The Board is responsible for the allocation of the core SWLEP budget, comprising of 

contributions from central government, in kind and financial resources from the two 

Unitary Authorities and other sources of funding, with a view to ensuring efficient and 

effective use of those resources to manage the administration and operation of the 

SWLEP. Before taking decisions on the use of core financial resources, including any 

decision to delegate activities to the Director or direct the Director to commission 

external resources, the Board must consider the availability of resources and skills 

within the SWLEP and the likely cost and availability of external resources and skills. 

 

8. The Board is also responsible for agreeing the allocation of external financial resources 

allocated to the SWLEP, such as but not limited to Growth Deal funding in line with its 

Assurance Framework (Section F); its Scheme of Delegation (Section D). and its Finance 

and Commissioning Policy (Section E) 

 

9. The role of a Board member is to use their skills, knowledge and experience for the 

benefit of the SWLEP to assist it in fulfilling its role as set out under Role and 

Governance Principles (Section A).  In accepting their appointment, a Board member 

agrees to act in accordance with this Governance Framework and, in particular, to 

comply with the Conflict of Interest policy.  

 

10. The Chair is additionally responsible for providing leadership for the Board and the 

SWLEP and facilitating collective decision-making by the Board as set out in her/his job 

description.  S/He shall act with the aims of: 

 

a. ensuring that the Board operates efficiently and effectively; 

b. being an effective ambassador for the SWLEP both regionally and nationally. 

 

11. The Secretariat of the SWLEP is the human resource which is clearly committed to the 

work of the partnership on an ongoing basis. As such it comprises:  

 

a. individuals engaged to carry out a role which solely involves working for or on 

behalf of the SWLEP, including but not limited to the SWLEP Director; 

b. the  Corporate Director of Economy, Regeneration & Skills (or equivalent post-

holder) at Swindon Borough Council and the Associate Director, Economy, and 

Page 58



 

  

Planning (or equivalent post-holder) at Wiltshire Council, to the extent that their 

working time is clearly allocated to work for and on behalf of the SWLEP 

through a written statement specifying the amount of time allocated to work for 

the LEP and the nature of the activities to be carried out or prioritised during 

that time; and  

c. any other individuals whose working time is partly allocated to work for or on 

behalf of the SWLEP, to the extent that the time of those individuals is clearly 

allocated to working by or on behalf of the LEP through a secondment 

agreement or other written statement specifying the amount of time allocated to 

work for the LEP and the nature of the activities to be carried out or prioritised 

during that time; 

 

and those individuals shall all be regarded as members of the Secretariat working 

together for the SWLEP regardless of the identity of the organisation(s) with which 

those individuals have contracts of employment and the proportion of their time 

allocated to working on behalf of the SWLEP.  

 

12. The role of the Secretariat is to support the Board in performing the SWLEP’s activities 

in compliance with its Governance Framework.  This includes planning and co-ordination 

of the SWLEP’s activities, engagement with stakeholders, administration and 

commissioning and management of external resource.   

 

13. The SWLEP Director shall be accountable directly to the Chair (on behalf of the Board) 

for their performance.  Reporting and accountability arrangements for staff within 

paragraph 11.c above shall be agreed in advance with the Board and specified in the 

written agreement specifying the allocation of their time to the SWLEP. 

 

14. The SWLEP has a Board of a minimum of 14 and maximum of 20 Members and is 

constituted in such a way as to ensure that it is business-led, with its Chair and at least 

70% of all Members representing the business community who will be appointed on a 3 

year basis (which can be extended).  The Leaders of the two Unitary Authorities and the 

Commander of the Military HQ South West are permanent members of the SWLEP 

Board.  In addition a Board Member representing the education sector will be appointed 

on a 3 year basis (which can be extended).  The composition of the Board and the 

selection, appointment and tenure period for the Chair and Vice Chair Board Member 

are set out in full in the SWLEP Assurance Framework.  The Senior Whitehall Sponsor, 

Page 59



 

  

the BEIS2 Minster who acts as the SWLEP champion and the BEIS Relationship Manager 

will be invited to join SWLEP Board meetings as guests but will not be able to vote. 

 

15. In the event of a Board Member having been found to have been in breach of the 

Conflict of Interest Policy by the Independent Review Panel the Board has the power to 

remove or suspend. 

 

16. The Commissioning Group oversees strategy development and the forward work plan 

of the Board; maintains strategic oversight of the delivery and financial performance of 

SWLEP schemes; and ensures compliance with the legal and financial terms of the 

Assurance Framework.  It comprises the SWLEP Chair, the SWLEP Vice-Chair, the 

Leaders of Unitary Authorities, the Chief Executive of Swindon Borough Council, and 

the Corporate Director of Wiltshire Council, supported by the SWLEP Executive 

Group. The Commissioning Group will: 

 

a) Ensure that the arrangements put in place conform to legal requirements with regard 

to freedom of information, equalities, the environment and other matters. 

b) Advise the SWLEP Board on the appropriate use of SWLEP funds.  

c) Ensure that there is independence between scheme promoter and the decision 

making body in order to avoid conflict of interest. 

d) Ensure that official records of proceedings relating to the investment decisions are 

maintained. 

e) Ensure that regular progress reports and updates are scheduled with appropriate 

Government teams. 

 

Board meetings  

17. The Board shall meet not less than five times per year. 

 

18. A minimum of four weeks advance public notice will usually be given of Board meetings. 

However meetings may be convened at shorter notice where there is a need for 

decisions to be taken before the next scheduled Board meeting which will be publicised 

as soon as possible after the meeting date is confirmed.   

 

19. The Board will usually meet in person but it may meet and take decisions virtually (by 

video conference, telephone conference or exchange of emails) where there is a need 

for decisions to be taken before the next scheduled Board meeting and it is not 

practicable for the Board to meet in person within the relevant timescales.  Where 

                                                           
2
 Department for Business Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) 

Page 60



 

  

virtual meetings take place they must be quorate in accordance with paragraph 22.a.  

Decision-making by email exchange will be regarded as quorate where at least six Board 

members have participated in the email exchange and expressed a clear view on the 

decision and both members representing Swindon Borough Council and Wiltshire 

Council.  

 

20. The Board will conduct its business in an open and transparent manner, comparable to 

the two Unitary Authorities, which will enable interested stakeholders and members of 

the public to scrutinise and participate in SWLEP processes unless there are specific 

reasons for such discussion to be restricted from the public as set out in the Assurance 

Framework, Appendix B.  This includes holding meetings in public; how individuals can 

submit questions to the Board and the publication of the Board agenda papers and 

minutes.  Agenda papers for the Board will be published on the SWLEP website a 

minimum of five clear working days prior to the relevant meeting unless there is an 

extraordinary meeting called with less than five days notice.  

 

21. The content and quality of the written materials and oral reports provided to the Board 

shall be sufficient to enable the Board to appropriately monitor and plan the SWLEP's 

activities and performance and to fully consider, discuss and reach informed decisions on 

any proposals or recommendations put to the Board for decision. In particular, the 

papers prepared for each Board meeting shall: 

 

a. specify clearly the purpose of the document i.e. is it for approval, discussion, for 

information and whether it is commercially sensitive. 

 

b. identify any recommendations or proposals put forward for decision and the 

reasons why a proposal or recommendation is made; 

 

c. in the case of any expenditure or grant of funding proposed for agreement by the 

Board: 

 

 confirm that appropriate advice has been sought from the relevant 

Unitary Authority, in its capacity as accountable body for that 

expenditure or funding, as to whether the expenditure or funding is 

within the scope of any conditions which apply to the use of that funding 

and as to any onward conditions or requirements which should be 

attached to the expenditure or funding; and  

 

  attach or summarise any such advice received unless there are specific 

Page 61



 

  

reasons for such information to be restricted from the public as set out in 

the Assurance Framework, Appendix B.   

 

d. include appropriate reports on:   

 

 the activities of, Board sub-groups and any other Board groups as 

appropriate; and 

 other delegated or commissioned activities. 

 

22. Board meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the following provisions:  

 

a. The quorum for a Board meeting shall be 6, of whom at least one must be a 

member representing Swindon Borough Council and one must be a member 

representing Wiltshire Council.  "Member representing" shall be interpreted in 

accordance with paragraph c.   

 

b. To support democratic accountability, Board members representing a Unitary 

Authority may be accompanied at Board meetings by one other elected Member 

of that Authority as an “Observer” who will be entitled to participate in 

discussions on the same basis as the Board member but will not be entitled to 

vote and are not counted as an attending Board member for the purposes of 

determining whether the meeting is quorate.  

 

c. Where a Board member representing a Unitary Authority is unable to attend a 

Board meeting s/he may nominate either the deputy leader or a member of the 

relevant Authority’s cabinet as their representative to attend in their place to 

maintain this level of Members with democratic accountability responsibilities on 

the Board.  In this circumstance, the alternate representative will be entitled to 

participate in discussions and vote as if s/he were a Board member. 

 

d. Where any other Board member is unable to attend a Board meeting s/he may 

nominate another Board member to comment on any matters on their behalf 

and exercise their vote if required.   

 

e. Any nominations under paragraphs c or d should be notified to the Chair and the 

SWLEP Director in advance of the meeting and must be minuted.   

 

f. The Chief Executive of Swindon Borough Council and the Corporate Director of 

Wiltshire Council shall have the status of Advisors to the Board.  Advisors shall 

Page 62



 

  

not be counted when determining whether the meeting is quorate and shall not 

be entitled to vote.  However Advisors shall be entitled to receive notice of 

Board meetings, receive copies of Board papers and to attend Board meetings as 

if they were Board members.  Advisors shall be entitled to participate in 

discussions at Board meetings, subject only to the exercise of the Chair's general 

discretion as to the conduct of Board meetings.  

 

g. Individuals other than Board members may attend Board meetings to the extent 

that the Board considers that their attendance will assist the Board: 

 

  in the conduct of the business to be conducted at that meeting; 

 in the ongoing management of the SWLEP's activities;  

 in the maintenance or development of relationships with stakeholders; or  

 to the extent that the Board otherwise considers it appropriate in the 

interests of transparency and maximising understanding of the SWLEP's 

role.   

 

Such individuals shall be referred to as "in attendance", and may include (but 

are not limited to) members of the Secretariat, employees or members of the 

Unitary Authorities who are not Board members, professional advisers or 

others able to provide information or expertise to the Board.  Individuals in 

attendance shall not be counted when determining whether the meeting is 

quorate and shall not be entitled to vote.  Participation by individuals in 

attendance in discussions at Board meetings shall be at the discretion of the 

Chair.  

 

h. At the start of each Board meeting the Chair shall remind Board members of the 

need to declare any conflicts of interest or potential conflicts of interest in 

relation to specific agenda items.  Board members must declare any such 

conflicts or potential conflicts prior to the start of discussion on the relevant 

agenda item.  Such declarations shall be considered and actioned in accordance 

with the Conflict of Interest Policy (Section C). 

 

i. The SWLEP Board will aim to make decisions on the basis of consensus which is 

set out in more detail in section four of the SWLEP Assurance Framework.  

Where consensus does not emerge from the first full discussion of any issue or 

proposal, subject to paragraph j and unless a decision is required urgently (such 

that it cannot be delayed without prejudicing the position of the SWLEP or its 

stakeholders) the Board will usually delay decision-making on that matter until a 

later date to allow for further consideration and discussion, including collation 

Page 63



 

  

and consideration of any additional information or advice which the Board 

considers may be of assistance.   

 

j. If either Unitary Authority expresses a concern that a proposal would, if 

accepted, result in a risk of one or both Unitary Authorities breaching regulatory 

or accounting requirements, contravening a core policy of the Authority or being 

subject to legal challenge: 

 

 the Board shall delay decision-making on that proposal to allow for 

further consideration and discussion and to obtain appropriate advice; 

 Board members shall have due regard to the views of the Unitary 

Authorities, any legal or other professional advice obtained or provided 

to it and all other relevant factors in reaching a final view on the proposal.   

 

k. Where the Board has not been able to reach consensus even after it has 

proceeded in accordance with paragraphs i and j, or if a decision is required 

urgently and cannot be delayed beyond the first full discussion without 

prejudicing the position of the SWLEP or its stakeholders, the Board shall take a 

decision on the basis of a vote.  Each Board member shall have a single vote and 

a proposal shall be agreed as a decision of the Board if a majority of members 

present and voting cast their votes in favour of the proposal as long as: 

 

 the Board members representing both Unitary Authorities cast their 

votes in favour of accepting the plan; and 

 

 at least 50% of the other Board members present and voting cast their 

votes in favour of accepting the proposal.    

 

23. Discussion and decisions at Board meetings shall be minuted and the draft minutes shall 

be published on the SWLEP’s website no later than fourteen clear working days after 

the Board meeting with the Chair’s approval, subject to any redactions or exclusions 

reasonably necessary on the grounds of confidentiality or commercial sensitivity.  

 

Decision-making and delegation 

24. The Board takes the decisions of the SWLEP, subject only to delegations made in 

accordance with this Governance Framework. Any decision or action which has not 

been made, approved or delegated by the Board in accordance with this Governance 

Framework shall not be regarded as a decision of the SWLEP.   

Page 64



 

  

 

25. The Board shall only take a final decision on any activity to be undertaken by or on 

behalf of the SWLEP on the basis of appropriate information regarding the resources 

(both staff and financial) required to carry out that activity and the availability of such 

resources to the SWLEP.  In taking any such decision the Board shall specify the manner 

in which its decision is to be implemented, including any delegation of actions or 

decisions, the resources to be used and any finance or commissioning actions required. 

 

26. Subject to paragraph 11, the Board may use the resources of the Secretariat and may 

delegate actions and decisions to the Director in accordance with the Scheme of 

Delegation.  Where the Board delegates any specific actions to the Director, sub-group, 

or other Board group or authorises any external commissioning of work, the delegation 

shall include a clear statement of the expected outputs or deliverables for the work 

(including requirements as to timing of outputs).  The Director shall report 

appropriately to each Board meeting in accordance with the SWLEP's Assurance 

Framework on progress in respect of such delegations and commissioned work.   

 

27. The Board may delegate decisions or actions to a sub-group or other Board working 

group only as provided for in the Scheme of Delegation.  Any such sub-group must 

report fully and in the manner requested to each Board meeting on actions and 

decisions taken under the delegation since the previous Board meeting, including in 

particular any actions which commit or may commit the SWLEP to future actions or to 

use of its resources and submission of any bids or applications made on behalf of the 

SWLEP.   

 

28. A Board working group is a group of Board members (minimum of two) and such other 

members as the Board considers appropriate.   

 

29. The Board may establish one or more Board sub-groups to carry out particular actions 

or activities where it is satisfied that the following conditions are met:  

 

a. The activities are within the SWLEP's Role and Governance Principles; 

b. The activities are likely to facilitate delivery of the SWLEP's Strategic Economic 

Plan.   

c. There is a clear statement of the proposed terms of reference, outputs and 

membership of the sub-group, and the scope of work proposed appears to be 

appropriate and reasonably practicable;  

d. The resources required to enable the sub-group to fulfil its terms of reference 

Page 65



 

  

have been clearly identified, including any associated costs, and those resources 

are available or can be secured; 

e. It is appropriate to use the SWLEP staff and financial resources for this purpose 

having regard to the competing demands on the SWLEP's resources and the 

SWLEP's priorities as stated in its Role and Governance Principles and Strategic 

Economic Plan. 

 

In this context "resources" includes both financial resources and the time of individuals 

(whether Board members, Secretariat staff or others).  For the avoidance of doubt, the 

requirement in paragraph b above shall be complied with if the proposed activities are 

considered likely to improve the SWLEP's understanding of the needs of businesses or 

any particular type or category of business in the SWLEP area, or of the economic 

conditions affecting such businesses.  

 

30. Any decision of the Board to establish a sub-group shall include a clear statement of the 

sub-group's terms of reference, membership and chairmanship.   

 

31. The Board shall permit any sub-group to continue in operation only for as long as it 

continues to meet the conditions in paragraph 25.  

 

32. The membership of a Board sub-group must include a minimum of one Board member 

who shall usually be the Chair of the sub-Group. 

 

33. Each Board sub-group shall report to Board meetings as required on progress in 

delivering its terms of reference, including information about activities undertaken, use 

of resources and proposed further activities. 

 

34. Where it is necessary to commission external resources in order to carry out the 

SWLEP's activities or implement decisions of the Board, this shall be done in accordance 

with the Finance and Commissioning Policy (Section E)  and in accordance with para 7. 

 

 

Financial responsibilities 

35. Wiltshire Council shall act as the accountable body for funds paid or payable to the 

SWLEP and for expenditure, grants or other funding paid on behalf of the SWLEP.  The 

SWLEP shall provide Wiltshire Council with all information and documentation 

reasonably required to enable Wiltshire Council to perform the function of accountable 

body in accordance with all relevant legal and regulatory responsibilities and applicable 

guidance. 

  

Page 66



 

  

36. Subject to paragraph 35, the Board is responsible for the management and expenditure 

of funds available to the SWLEP.  Decisions involving expenditure or grant of funds shall 

only be made in accordance with the Finance and Commissioning Policy (Section E).   

  

Page 67



 

  

C. Conflicts of Interest Policy 
 

Definitions 

1. In this policy "Relevant Interest" means any company directorship, trusteeship, 

elected office or remunerated post, any financial interest in an organisation or 

project likely to be affected by the work of the SWLEP or any other relevant 

interest.   

 

General 

2. All Board members must comply with this policy in full.  By accepting appointment as 

a Board member, an individual indicates their acceptance of this requirement and 

their agreement to notify interests in accordance with this policy.  

 

3. The Board shall conduct its proceedings so as to ensure that all conflicts and 

potential conflicts of interest are disclosed and that appropriate action is taken in 

response to such disclosures.  This includes acting in the interest of the area as a 

whole and not according to sectoral or geographic interests of their member 

organisations. 

 

Register of Interests 

4. The Director shall maintain a Register of Board Members' Interests which shall 

record all Relevant Interests of the Board members and which will be published on 

the SWLEP website.  Board members shall supply information to the Director for 

inclusion in the register (or a nil return if appropriate) as soon as possible following 

their appointment and shall notify the Director at the earliest opportunity of any 

changes or additions to their Relevant Interests.   

 

5. The Director shall:  

 

a. send a request for information about Relevant Interests to any new Board 

member immediately following their appointment;  

b. circulate to Board members at least annually a request to review their entries 

on the Register and notify any updates to the Director. 

 

6. A Board member shall not vote or participate in discussions on any matter which 

relates directly to an organisation or project in respect of which the Board member 

has a Relevant Interests, or where the matter may have a particular impact on such 

an organisation or project.   

 

Page 68



 

  

Conflicts of interest 

7. A conflict of interest arises on a matter to be discussed by the Board where: 

 

a. the matter relates to an organisation with which a Board member or their 

partner/spouse or family member is associated as an employee, director, 

contractor, trustee, member or shareholder;  

b. the matter may have a particular impact on an organisation with which a 

Board member or their partner/spouse or family member is associated as an 

employee, director, contractor, trustee, member or shareholder;  

c. the matter may have a particular impact on a Board member, their 

partner/spouse, family member or close friend (i.e. an impact greater than the 

impact on the majority of Council tax payers or other comparable individuals 

in the area); or  

d. the Board member has any other direct personal or financial interest in the 

outcome of the Board's discussion on the matter.  

 

8. Where a Board member considers that s/he has or may have a conflict of interest in 

relation to a matter to be discussed by the Board, s/he must disclose the conflict or 

potential conflict to the Board prior to the commencement of the Board's discussion 

of that matter. This requirement applies regardless of whether he has previously 

declared the interest in the Register of Board Members' Interests.   

 

9. Where a Board member makes a declaration under paragraph 8, unless the Board 

agrees that the matter declared does not fall within the definition of a conflict of 

interest the Board member shall not participate in or vote on the relevant matter 

and may, at the Chair's discussion, be asked to withdraw from the meeting.  

 

10. A disclosure by a Board member under paragraph 8 and all decisions relating to that 

disclosure shall be minuted.  

 

Breach of the policy 

11. In the event of a complaint that an alleged action or actions by a Board Member or a 

number of Board Members contravene(s) the SWLEP Code of Conduct, the Board 

will convene a group of 3 independent individuals appointed by the Director (The 

Independent Review Panel), who are not Board Members, are not conflicted by the 

allegation and have the required skills to review the veracity of the allegation.  The 

group is charged with making a decision as the whether the allegation is fully or 

partially proven or unproven.  The Independent Review Panel will report to the 

Board on the outcome of its review, including recommending to the Board what 

Page 69



 

  

action it should take in respect of the Board Member or number of Board members 

who were the subject of the complaint.  

 

12. When a complaint is received, the Chair (or in their absence the Vice-Chair), after 

taking advice from the Director will decide whether or not they should make an 

immediate recommendation to the Board to suspend the member or members from 

attending Board meetings and Board business subject to the complaint pending the 

outcome of the investigation by the Independent Review Panel and the response of 

the Board to the Panel’s recommendations.  Suspension is a neutral act enabling a full 

investigation to be carried out and is not intended to pre-judge the outcome of the 

investigation.  It is expected that such investigations will be completed within 30 

working days of the Board’s decision to investigate.  However the Board may extend 

the time for completion of an investigation where if it considers it is necessary to do 

so. 

 

Declaration of acceptance of appointment 

13. All Board Members are required to make a declaration of acceptance of appointment 

on the form included as appendix 1 to this policy before or at the first Board 

Meeting after their appointment.  

  

Page 70



 

  

Appendix 1: Declaration of acceptance of appointment to the SWLEP Board 

 

 

I …………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

having been appointed as a Board Member of the Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise 

Partnership declare that I take this role upon myself, and will duly and faithfully fulfil the 

duties of it according to the best of my judgement and ability. 

 

Signed …………………………………………… Date…………………………… 

 
 

This declaration was made and signed before me: 

 

Signed …………………………………………… Date…………………………… 

 

Proper officer of the SWLEP 

  

Page 71



 

  

D. Scheme of Delegation 
 

1. Delegation of actions and decisions by the Board may only be made in accordance 

with the Constitution and this Scheme of Delegation.   

 

2. Where the Chair is absent or unavailable, the Vice Chair may act in their place.   

 

Standing authorisations to the Director and the Chair: day to day management 

3. The Director is authorised to take such decisions as are necessary to enable her/him 

to carry out ongoing planning and administration tasks in relation to work already 

authorised by the Board within its business plan or by subsequent decisions of the 

Board.  This includes liaison with Unitary Authorities and other stakeholders, making 

arrangements for Board meetings and other agreed activities and other decisions or 

actions which are required to implement decisions of the Board or support ongoing 

activities.   

 

4. Any significant difficulties or complaints arising from use of the authority in paragraph 

3 shall be reported promptly to the Chair it the first instance.   

 

5. The Director shall provide a report to each Board meeting as required in relation to 

any significant issues or difficulties in relation to the use of the authority in paragraph 

3 and shall provide further information about his/her  actions on request from the 

Chair of the SWLEP Board.  

 

6. The Chair is authorised to take day to day decisions in relation to the management 

of the work of the Director, and to provide financial authorisations to the Director 

as provided for in the Finance and Commissioning Policy (Section E). 

 

Individual delegations of decision-making 

7. The Board may delegate authority to the Chair to take a specified decision on behalf 

of the Board on an exceptional basis where it determines that such decision or 

action must be taken urgently prior to the next scheduled Board meeting and it will 

not be practicable or appropriate to arrange an additional meeting of the Board to 

take the decision (whether in person or virtually as provided for in paragraph 19 of 

the Constitution, Section B).   

 

8. The Chair has the power to suspend a Board Member who is subject to a complaint 

pending the outcome of an investigation into that complaint in accordance with 

paragraph 12 of the Conflict of Interest Policy (Section C). 

Page 72



 

  

9. The Chair shall report to the Board at its next meeting on any decisions or actions 

made under a delegation within paragraph 7.   

 

10. The Board may delegate authority to a Board working group, as defined in paragraph 

13, on an exceptional basis to take specified decisions on behalf of the Board where 

the Board determines that such decision or action must be taken urgently prior to 

the next scheduled Board meeting and it is appropriate for it to be delegated to the 

Board working group rather than convening an additional Board meeting (whether in 

person or virtually as provided for in paragraph 16 of the Constitution).  

 

11. The terms of any delegation under paragraph 10 shall be clearly minuted, including 

the scope of the Group's authority and activities and the extent to which it is 

authorised to take decisions on behalf of the Board.   

 

12. The Board working group shall report to the Board at its next meeting on all 

decisions or actions made under a delegation within paragraph 10.   

 

13. The Board working group is a group of Board members (minimum of two) and such 

other Board members as the Board considers appropriate.   

 

Authorisation of actions to implement Board decisions 

14. The Board may ask the Director, individual Board members, Commissioning Group, 

any Board Sub-Group or other working group of the Board to carry out specific 

tasks or actions which implement decisions taken by the Board, where it considers 

that this will facilitate the performance of the SWLEP’s activities within its Role and 

Governance Principles (Section A). 

 

15. The Board may ask other individuals or organisations to carry out specific tasks or 

actions which implement decisions taken by the Board where it considers that this 

will facilitate the performance of the SWLEP’s activities within its Role and 

Governance Principles and in accordance with the SWLEP’s Finance and 

Commissioning Policy.   

 

16. A Board Sub-Group shall only carry out such activities as are specified within its 

terms of reference as agreed by the Board under paragraph 28 of the Constitution 

or amended by the Board from time to time under paragraph 14.  

 

17. Where any matter is delegated under paragraphs 14 or 15, this shall be subject to 

the requirement that the person or group given delegated authority shall provide 

Page 73



 

  

appropriate reports on their activities to the Board on request and in accordance 

with the LEP Assurance Framework.  

Page 74



 

  

E. Finance and Commissioning Policy 
 

Standing financial authorisations  

1. Where the Board has agreed a specific budget for expenditure on a particular 

project or activity, the Chair (or in their absence the Vice Chair) may incur or 

authorise any expenditure, with the agreement of the Section 151 Officer of the 

Accountable Body, up to the total value of that budget provided that it relates to 

work which is within the scope of the project or activity as originally agreed by the 

Board. 

 

2. Where the Board has agreed a specific budget for expenditure on a particular 

project or activity to be carried out by a Board Sub-Group, the Chair of that Sub-

Group may incur or authorise any expenditure up to the total value of that budget 

provided that it relates to work which is within the scope of the project or activity 

as originally authorised by the Board within the Sub-Group's Terms of Reference. 

 

3. Subject to paragraph 4, the following persons may incur or authorise any one-off 

item of expenditure up to the value of £10,000 which does not fall within paragraphs 

1 or 2 but which relates to the management of the SWLEP or activities within the 

SWLEP's Role and Governance Principles, without prior authorisation or approval 

from the Board or any other person:  

 

a. the SWLEP Director; 

 

b. the Chair or, in their absence, the Vice Chair.  

 

4. Paragraph 3 cannot be used either sequentially or at a single point in time to 

authorise multiple items of expenditure relating to the same activity, project or 

operational matter unless the total value of all such items is less than £10,000. 

 

5. Expenditure beyond the limits specified in paragraphs 1 to 3 may only be incurred 

with the prior authorisation of the Board.   

 

6. No expenditure or financial commitments may be made by any individual Board 

member other than the Chair (or the Vice-Chair if acting in the absence of the 

Chair).  Decisions on expenditure and financial commitments may be made only in 

accordance with this Finance and Commissioning Policy and in accordance with the 

Assurance Framework. 

Page 75



 

  

 

7. Use of the authority given by paragraphs 1 to 3 must be reported appropriately to 

the Board at the next scheduled Board meeting in accordance with the LEP 

Management Framework. 

 

Use of Unitary Authority resources 

8. Where a Unitary Authority has agreed to provide resource to the SWLEP on an 

ongoing basis in the form of a proportion of the time of one or more staff members 

employed to work within the Unitary Authority, this agreement shall be covered by 

a secondment agreement or comparable written agreement as specified in paragraph 

11 of the Board Constitution.  For the purposes of the Board Constitution, such 

resource shall be regarded as part of the Secretariat resources available internally 

within the SWLEP. 

 

9. Additional individual arrangements may be made between the SWLEP and the 

Unitary Authorities for the use of Unitary Authority resources (including staff time, 

equipment and other resources) provided that:  

 

a. these arrangements comply with legal, constitutional, financial/accounting and 

regulatory duties and obligations on the Unitary Authority;  

 

b. the nature of the arrangements, including the details of the resources to be 

made available, the work to be carried out and the timing of the work, is 

clearly specified in writing and agreed by the Board. 

 

10. It is the responsibility of the Unitary Authority to satisfy itself that the arrangements 

comply with the requirement in paragraph 9.a.  

 

11. For the purposes of the Board Constitution, arrangements under paragraph 9 above 

shall be regarded as commissioning of external resource in accordance with the 

Constitution paragraphs 2c and 7.   

 

Commissioning other external resources 

12. In relation to the commissioning of external resource other than arrangements 

under paragraph 9, the SWLEP hereby adopts and shall apply the procurement and 

contract rules of Wiltshire Council as Accountable Body3. 

 

  

                                                           
3
 Part 10 procurement and contract rules of the Wiltshire Council Constitution 

Page 76



 

  

Disbursement of grant funding  

13. The disbursement of funding through a grant agreements will be subject to an 

application, evaluation and prioritisation process as set out in full in the SWLEP 

Assurance Framework.  

 

14. Grant funding will be held by the Accountable Body as set out in full in the 

Accountable Body Agreement. 

  

Page 77



 

  

G Accountable Body Agreement 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Dated 2015 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

(1) WILTSHIRE COUNCIL 

 

(2) SWINDON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

(3) SWINDON AND WILTSHIRE LOCAL 

ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACCOUNTABLE BODY AGREEMENT 

 

 

  

Page 78



 

  

This Agreement made on                                  2015  

 

BETWEEN: 

 

1. WILTSHIRE COUNCIL of County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, 

BA14 8JN (“Wiltshire”);  

 

2. SWINDON BOROUGH COUNCIL of Civic Offices, Euclid Street, Swindon, 

SN1 2JH  (“Swindon”) ; and 

 

3. SWINDON AND WILTSHIRE LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP of 

Wiltshire Council Offices, Monkton Park, Chippenham, SN15 1ER ("SWLEP")  

       

(being either a “Party” or together “the Parties”) 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

A. SWLEP was established in 2011 with the aim of stimulating growth in the economy 

across the Wiltshire and Swindon area.  In part it aims to do this by playing a central 

role in determining local economic priorities and undertaking activities to drive 

economic growth and the creation of local jobs. It is a primary partnership between 

the business community and the two local councils; Wiltshire and Swindon.    

 

B. Central government has requested that all Local Enterprise Partnerships ("LEPs") 

develop a single assurance framework to cover all devolved government funding 

received by LEPs. SWLEP has been allocated monies from central government which 

can only be paid to a local authority nominated as an accountable body.  Wiltshire 

has agreed that it will act as the accountable body in respect of funding received by 

SWLEP.   

 

C. The purpose of this Accountable Body Agreement is to set out the respective roles 

and responsibilities of Wiltshire acting as the accountable body for the SWLEP and 

Swindon and associated matters in relation to the application and allocation of the 

devolved government funding to relevant projects and programmes.  

 

D. Swindon and Wiltshire are empowered under Section 1(1) Localism Act 2011. 

 

IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1 Definitions 

 

1.1 In this Agreement  the following terms shall have the following meanings: 

 

Accountable Body means Wiltshire; 

 

Agreement means this Accountable Body Agreement and any schedules; 

Page 79



 

  

 

Chief Executive means the Chief Executive of Swindon; 

 

Corporate Director means the Corporate Director with responsibility 

for economy and enterprise in Wiltshire or in his absence one of the other 

corporate directors in Wiltshire. 

 

EIR means the Environmental Information Regulations 2004; 

 

FOIA means the Freedom of Information Act 2000; 

 

Financial Year means during the continuance of the Agreement any period 

commencing on 1st April and ending on 31st March or part thereof  

 

Funding means all and any devolved government funding including the Local 

Growth Fund held by Wiltshire as accountable body and to be allocated by 
SWLEP pursuant to the Assurance Framework; 

 

Projects/Programmes the schemes allocated the Funding; 

 

Scheme Promoters means Wiltshire or Swindon or such other 

organisation which supports and promotes any of the Projects or 

Programmes; 

 

The SWLEP Assurance Framework means the Swindon and Wiltshire 

Local Enterprise Partnership (SWLEP) Assurance Framework dated March 

2015, a copy of which is set out in Schedule 2. 

 

1.1 Headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and 

should not be incorporated into this Agreement and shall not be deemed to 

be any indication of the meaning of the clauses to which they relate. 

1.2 References to any statute or statutory provision include references to: 

1.2.1 all Acts of Parliament and all other legislation having legal effect in the 

United  Kingdom; 

1.2.2 any subsequent statutes directly or indirectly amending, consolidating, 

extending, replacing or re-enacting that statute and also include any 

orders, regulations, instruments or other subordinate legislation made 

under that statue; 

2 Duration 

 

2.1 This Agreement shall commence on the date hereof and shall continue in 

effect until either Wiltshire or Swindon terminates the Agreement in 

accordance with Clause 13 of this Agreement. 

Page 80



 

  

3 Roles and responsibilities 

 

3.1 It is the overriding responsibility of SWLEP to ensure that SWLEP allocates 

or  otherwise deals with the Funding in such a way which does not breach the 

terms  and conditions upon which Wiltshire as Accountable Body has received the 

Funding  for the purposes of the SWLEP and is in accordance with the SWLEP 

Assurance  Framework. 

 

3.2 The roles and responsibilities of the Parties are set out in the Schedule 1 to 

this Agreement. 

 

4 Governance and decision making 

 

4.1 The governance and working arrangements between the Parties shall be in 

accordance with the SWLEP Assurance Framework. 

 
5   Financial Arrangements 

 

5.1 Unless otherwise agreed, Swindon and Wiltshire is each solely responsible 

for Projects or Programmes for which either are the Scheme Promoter in 

their respective administrative areas and in respect thereof for compliance 

with any grant conditions which shall include the obligation to repay in whole 

or part the Funding in the event of non-compliance with any conditions.   

 

5.2 As the Accountable Body Wiltshire will enter into any required grant funding 

or loan agreement with a Scheme Promoter in relation to any part of the 

Funding allocated to such Scheme Promoter substantially which shall 

substantially be in the form of Grant Agreement attached in Schedule 3. 

 

5.3 In the event that a Scheme Promoter who is a recipient of any part of the 

Funding granted by SWLEP fails to comply with the terms and conditions or 

any other aspect of any grant funding or loan agreement, Wiltshire as the 

Accountable Body will use reasonable endeavours to recover such sums as 

may be due and to enforce such terms.   

 

5.4 Wiltshire as the Accountable Body shall: 

 

5.4.1 establish and maintain a financial system to account for all monies 

received and disbursed on behalf of SWLEP; 

 

5.4.2 transfer, subject to due diligence, the Funding for the 

Projects/Programmes on behalf of the  SWLEP ; 

 

5.4.3 receive income and make timely payments for and on behalf of 

SWLEP; 

 

Page 81



 

  

5.4.4 maintain proper records of all monies received and disbursed for 

SWLEP and make such records available for inspection by both 

internal and external regulators; 

 

5.4.5 arrange regular audit examination of SWLEP activities with regards 

to use of public resources and, following each audit, present a 

report to SWLEP with recommendations to strengthen their 

governance and management practices; 

 

5.4.6 supply, as necessary, completed statements of income, 

expenditure and disbursement to SWLEP, funding organisations, 

central government and external auditor.   

 

5.5 Interest shall accrue on the Funding which shall be held by Wiltshire and as 

agreed  between the Parties distributed, taking into account the reasonable 

costs of  Wiltshire for acting as the Accountable Body. The Parties will 
use their reasonable endeavours to agree a more detailed procedure in 

relation to such interest during the continuance of the Agreement. 

 

5.6 Where all the Parties agree, and in the event that there is a requirement to 

undertake any re-profiling of the Funding in any Financial Year, that part of 

the Funding which has been the subject of such re-profiling shall be available 

to either Wiltshire or Swindon for any of their respective capital projects. 

Such amount of such Funding utilised by either Swindon or Wiltshire in 

accordance with this Clause 5.6 shall be provided for in either of the Party's 

budgets for the next Financial Year and immediately reimbursed to SWLEP at 

the start of the next Financial Year. 

 

5.7 SWLEP and Swindon shall: 

 

5.7.1 Co-operate with and assist Wiltshire acting in its role as 

accountable body in undertaking the day to day responsibility for 

financial matters; 

 

5.7.2 Co-operate with and assist Wiltshire in regular audit examinations 

of all operating systems; 

 

5.7.3 Report any financial irregularity or suspected irregularity in the use 

of any of the Funding to Wiltshire.  

 

6 Record Keeping and Communication 

 

6.1 The Parties shall ensure that a proper record is kept of the proceedings of 

the SWLEP. 

 

6.2 A communication protocol in relation to publicity and disclosure of 

Page 82



 

  

information shall be agreed between the Parties including the management 

and timing of such communications. 

 

7 Freedom of Information 

 

7.1 SWLEP and Swindon acknowledges that Wiltshire as Accountable Body is 

subject  to the requirements of the FOIA and the EIR and shall: 

 

7.1.1 provide all necessary assistance and cooperation as reasonably 

requested by Wiltshire to enable Wiltshire to comply with its 

obligations under the FOIA and the EIR; and 

 

7.1.2 provide Wiltshire with a copy of all information belonging to 

Wiltshire requested in the Request for Information which is in its 

possession  or control in the form that Wiltshire requires within 7 

Working Days (or such other period as Wiltshire may reasonably 
specify) of Wiltshire's request for such information; and 

 

7.1.3 not respond directly to a Request for Information unless 

authorised in writing to do so by Wiltshire. 

 

7.2 SWLEP and Swindon acknowledges that Wiltshire may be required under the 

FOIA and the EIR to disclose Information concerning this Agreement without 

consulting or obtaining consent from either the SWLEP or Swindon. In these 

circumstances Wiltshire shall, in accordance with any relevant guidance 

issued under the FOIA, take reasonable steps, where appropriate, to give the 

SWLEP or Swindon advance notice, or failing that, to draw the disclosure to 

the SWLEP or Swindon's attention after any such disclosure.  

 

7.3 The Parties acknowledge that where any of them receives a Request for 

Information not relating to Wiltshire as Accountable Body but otherwise in 

relation to Projects and Programmes, such a Request for Information will be 

dealt with by the recipient in accordance with the provisions of the FOIA. 

 
8 Data Protection 

 

8.1 The Parties shall comply with their obligations under the Data Protection Act 

1998 in the performance of their obligations under this Agreement. 

 

8.2 The provisions of this Clause 8 shall apply during the continuance of the 

Agreement and indefinitely after its expiry or termination. 

 

9 Confidentiality 

 

9.1 Neither Party will use or disclose any confidential information provided by 

the other pursuant to this Agreement otherwise than for the performance of 

Page 83



 

  

their obligations under this Agreement, save as may be otherwise agreed or 

required by law. 

 

9.2 For the avoidance of doubt, confidential information shall not include: 

 

9.2.1 any information obtained from a third party who is free to divulge 

such information;  

 

9.2.2 any information which is already in the public domain otherwise 

than as a breach of this Agreement; or  

 

9.2.3 any information which was rightfully in the possession of a Party 

prior to the disclosure by the other Party and lawfully acquired 

from sources other than the other Party. 

 

9.3 Subject to Clause 9.2 the Parties shall not make any press announcement or 
publicise the Agreement or any part of the Agreement in any way, except 

with the agreement of the Parties 

 

10 Equality 

 

10.1 The Parties shall perform its obligations under this Agreement in accordance 

with: 

 

10.1.1 all applicable equality Law (whether in relation to race, sex, gender 

reassignment, age, disability, sexual orientation, religion or belief, 

pregnancy, maternity or otherwise); 

 

10.1.2 any applicable equality and diversity policy of the Parties from time 

to time; and 

 

10.1.3 take all necessary steps, and inform each other of the steps taken, 

to prevent unlawful discrimination designated as such by any court 

or tribunal, or the Equality and Human Rights Commission or (any 

successor organisation).  

 

11 Social Value 

 

11.1 In performing their obligations in pursuance of these this Agreement the 

Parties shall comply with the requirements of Public Services (Social Value) 

Act 2012. 

 

12 Environmental  

 

12.1 In performing their obligations in pursuance of this Agreement the Parties 

shall at all times co-operate with each other to improve environmental 

Page 84



 

  

performance where it is not detrimental to the interests of any Party to do 

so. 

 

13 Termination on notice 

 

13.1 This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect unless or until either 

Wiltshire or Swindon serve at least twelve  months' notice to terminate to 

the other Parties or by mutual agreement of the Parties at any time.  

 

14 Disputes 

 

14.1  Prior to action under paragraph 79 of the SWLEP Assurance Framework, if 

any Party has any issues, concerns or complaints about any matter relating to 

this Agreement that Party shall notify the other Party/Parties and the Parties 

shall then seek to resolve the issue by a process of consultation.  If the issue 

cannot be resolved within a reasonable period of time, the matter shall be 
escalated to the Corporate Director and the Chief Executive to resolve such 

dispute negotiating on the basis of good faith.  

 

14.2 If any Party receives any formal inquiry, complaint, claim or threat of action 

from a third party they shall notify the other Parties and co-operate with 

each other to respond, or take such action, as is appropriate and/or 

necessary.   

 

15 The Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 

 

15.1 The Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 shall not apply to this 

Agreement but this does not affect any rights which are available apart from 

this Act. 

16 General 

 

16.1 Each of the Parties represents and warrants to the other that it has full 

capacity and authority, and all necessary consents, licences and permissions 

to enter into and perform its obligations under the Agreement, and that the 

Agreement is executed by its duly authorised representative.  

 

16.2 The Agreement cannot be varied except in writing signed by a duly 

authorised representative of the Parties.  

 

16.3 The Agreement contains the whole agreement between the Parties and 

supersedes and replaces any prior written or oral agreements, 

representations or understandings between them. The Parties confirm that 

they have not entered into the Agreement on the basis of any representation 

that is not expressly incorporated into the Agreement. Nothing in this 

clause shall exclude liability for fraud or fraudulent misrepresentation. 

 

Page 85



 

  

16.4 Any waiver or relaxation either partly, or wholly of any of the terms and 

conditions of the Agreement shall be valid only if it is communicated to the 

other Party in writing and expressly stated to be a waiver.  A waiver of any 

right or remedy arising from a breach of contract shall not constitute a 

waiver of any right or remedy arising from any other breach of the 

Agreement. 

 

16.5 The Agreement shall not constitute or imply any partnership, joint venture, 

agency, fiduciary relationship or other relationship between the Parties other 

than the contractual relationship expressly provided for in the Agreement. 

Neither Party shall have, nor represent that it has, any authority to make any 

commitments on the other Party’s behalf. 

 

16.6 Except as otherwise expressly provided by the Agreement, all remedies 

available to either Party for breach of the Agreement (whether under the 

Agreement, statute or common law) are cumulative and may be exercised 
concurrently or separately, and the exercise of one remedy shall not be 

deemed an election of such remedy to the exclusion of other remedies.  

 

16.7 If any provision of the Agreement is prohibited by law or judged by a court 

to be unlawful, void or unenforceable, the provision shall, to the extent 

required, be severed from the Agreement and rendered ineffective as far as 

possible without modifying the remaining provisions of the Agreement, and 

shall not in any way affect any other circumstances of or the validity or 

enforcement of the Agreement. 

 

17 Notices 

 

17.1 Any notice to be given under the Agreement shall be in writing and may be 

served by personal delivery, first class recorded or e-mail to the address of 

the relevant Party set out below, or such other address as that Party may 

from time to time notify to the other Party in accordance with this clause. 

 

18 English Law 

 

18.1 This Agreement and any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with 

it or its subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or 

claims) shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of 

England and Wales. 

  

Page 86



 

  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have signed this Agreement as a Deed on the day 

and year first before written. 

 

 

EXECUTED as a DEED BY   ) 

THE COMMON SEAL OF WILTSHIRE ) 

COUNCIL being affixed hereto and  ) 

authenticated by the undermentioned person ) 

authorised by the Council to act for that purpose: ) 

            

         ………………………….. 

        Authorised Signatory 

 

EXECUTED as a DEED BY     ) 

THE COMMON SEAL OF SWINDON BOROUGH ) 

COUNCIL being affixed hereto and    ) 

authenticated by the undermentioned person   ) 

authorised by the Council to act for that purpose:  ) 

 

 

        ………………………….. 

        Authorised Signatory 

 

 

 

 

…………………………………….. 

Signed for and on behalf of  

SWINDON AND WILTSHIRE LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP 

Page 87



 

  

Schedule 1 

 

Roles & Responsibilities  

1.1 Wiltshire shall: 

 

1.1.1 Ensure that the decisions and activities of the SWLEP conform with legal 

requirements with regard to freedom of information, equalities, the environment and 

other matters. 

1.1.2 Ensure (through the Section 151 officer) that funds are used appropriately using the 

same checks that Wiltshire Council would of its own funds and in line with any grant 

conditions in the grant condition letter through a Section 31 Grant Determination 

(and not for its own purposes or without consent of the SWLEP). 

1.1.3 Ensure that the SWLEP Assurance Framework is being adhered to. 

1.1.4 Ensure the official record of SWLEP proceedings is maintained and having access to 

all relevant SWLEP documents. 

1.1.5 Take responsibility for the decisions of the SWLEP in approving schemes (e.g. if 
subjected to legal challenge) as per the Legal Frameworks and Agreements between 

the Accountable Body, SWLEP and Scheme Promoters. 

1.1.6 Ensure that there are arrangements for local audit of funding allocated by the SWLEP 

comparable to Wiltshire Council’s own arrangements for local authority spend. 

 

1.2 SWLEP shall: 

 

1.2.1 Comply with the SWLEP Assurance Framework. 

1.2.2 Develop strategic economic plans and policies, including amendments to the 

Swindon and Wiltshire Strategic Economic Plan.  

1.2.3 Identify a prioritised list of schemes within the available budget including under / over 

programming to enable prudent management.  

1.2.4 Make decisions based on the scrutiny of individual scheme business cases. 

1.2.5 Approve the release of funding in consultation with the Accountable Body Section 

151 Officer and in accordance with the Accountable Body Legal Agreement to the 

relevant scheme promoter in line with any grant conditions in the grant condition 

letter through a Section 31 Grant Determination.  

1.2.6 Using reasonable endeavours ensure value for money is achieved.  

1.2.7 Monitor progress of scheme delivery and spend.  

1.2.8 Use reasonable endeavours to ensure on-time delivery of schemes to the 

programme.  

1.2.9 Actively manage the devolved budget and programme to respond to changed 

circumstances. 

 

Page 88



 

  

1.3 Swindon shall: 

 

1.3.1 Comply with the terms and conditions of the Funding received by Wiltshire as the 

accountable body in relation to SWLEP pertaining to the administrative area of 

Swindon. 

1.3.2 Comply with the SWLEP Assurance Framework. 

1.3.3 Provide all necessary assistance to SWLEP and Wiltshire in relation to Projects and 

Programmes which operate in the administrative area of Swindon. 

 

  

Page 89



 

  

Schedule 2 

 

SWLEP Assurance Framework 

 

(See Section F of the Governance Framework) 

 
  

Page 90



 

  

H Code of Conduct 

All members of the SWLEP Board, its Subgroups and officers shall, when carrying out any 

duties or responsibilities on behalf of the SWLEP, abide by the 7 principles of public life: as 

set out in Section 28 of the Localism Act 20114;  

1. Selflessness; 

2. Integrity;  

3. Objectivity;  

4. Accountability;  

5. Openness;  

6. Honesty; and  

7. Leadership  

 

Board Members are expected to conduct themselves in accordance with these principles, 

which underpin the purpose and provisions of the Code of Conduct.  The 7 principles of 

public life are taken to be consistent with the following: 

 

Selflessness Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 
They should not do so in order to gain financial or other benefits for 

themselves, their family or their friends 

Integrity Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial 

or other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might 

seek to influence them in the performance of their official duties. 

Objectivity In carrying out public business, including making public appointments,   

awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and 

benefits, holders of public office should make choices on merit. 

Accountability Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and actions 

to the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is 

appropriate to their office. 

Openness Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the 

decisions and actions that they take. They should give reasons for their 

decisions and restrict information only when the wider public interest 

clearly demands it. 

Honesty Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests 

relating to their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts 

arising in a way that protects the public interest.  

Leadership Holders of public office should promote and support these principles 

by leadership and example. 

 

On joining the SWLEP Board, all members shall make a written declaration of their 

agreement to the Board’s Governance Framework which includes this code of conduct.  

                                                           
4
 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/section/28/enacted 

Page 91



 

  

 

Gifts and Hospitality  

1.  All Members of the Board should follow the gifts and hospitality policy of Wiltshire 

Council as the Accountable Body as set out in Part 12 of its Constitution5. 

 

Complaints and Whistle-Blowing 

2. Any individual or organisation is entitled to make a complaint about the work of the 

SWLEP if they feel that it is not being conducted in accordance with the Governance 

Framework. All complaints will be dealt with by the Accountable Body using the 

Accountable Body’s complaints procedure6. 

 

  

                                                           
5
 https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/mglistgifts.aspx?bcr=1 

6
 http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/council/complaints/complaintsmakingacomplaint.htm 

Page 92

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/council/complaints/complaintsmakingacomplaint.htm


 

  

I Transparency Code  
 

The SWLEP shall comply with the spirit of the Local Government Transparency Code 2015. 

 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

Joint Strategic Economic 

Committee  

13 April 2017 
 

 

 

Security Level: Confidential  Restricted  Unclassified X Commercially 
Sensitive   

 

Meeting & Date: Joint Strategic Economic Committee – Thursday, 13 April 2017 

Subject: Commissioning Group Highlight Reports 

Attachments: None 

Author: Ian Durston Total no of sheets: 
(inc cover sheet) 

66 

 

Papers are provided for:    Approval     Discussion X   Information   

 

Summary & Recommendation: 

 

Summary 

 

Highlight Reports for each project and an overall summary table are presented for all LGF 

and other SWLEP projects. 

 

These reports had been reviewed in detail by the Commissioning Group on 8 March 2017 
and taken to the Board Meeting on 22 March 2017.   

Page 95

Agenda Item 7



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                                             
 

  

Local Growth Fund (Growth Deals 1 and 2) 

Project Ref 
 

Project Name Lead 
Delivery 
Partner 

Previous Current Notes 

LGF/1516/001/A350 
 

A350 
Improvements 

WC 
Complete Complete 

 

LGF/1516/002/A429 
 

A429 Malmesbury WC 
Complete Complete 

 

LGF/1516/004/PSP 
 

Porton Science 
Park 

WC 
G AG 

Construction has commenced – completion now due December 
2017.  Discovery of asbestos and electric cables, along with DSTL 
on site working requirements, has caused a 5 week delay.  

LGF/1516/005/LSTF 
 

LGF Sustainable 
Transport Package 

SBC 
AG G 

Work progressing to programme.  Programme for 17/18 has been 
requested. 

LGF/1617/001/A350 
 

A350 Dualling 
Bypass 
(Badger – Brook + 
Chequers) 

WC 

G G 

Tender process on track to appoint contractor and complete Full 
Business Case (FBC).  Construction due to start in May 2017. 

LGF/1617/003/SRT Swindon Rapid 
Transit 

SBC 
AG AG 

Draft business case in process of being written.  Due for 
completion in March 2017. 2017/18 programme has been 
requested. 

LGF/1617/006/JNC16 M4 Junction 16 SBC  
AG AG 

Construction in progress.  On track for completion in March 2018.  
Interim construction milestones have been requested. 

LGF/1617/007/MH Mansion House 
(Corsham) 

WC 

G AG 

Planning application was submitted in November 2016.  Objection 
has been raised by Georgian Group putting planning timescales at 
risk.  Running tender process to appoint contractor, but dependent 
on planning. 

LGF/1617/008/SBX Swindon Bus 
Exchange 

SBC 
R R 

Awaiting confirmation of project programme and financial profiling.  
Design review to conclude in March.   

LGF/1617/009/YWA A350 Yarnbrook/ 
West Ashton Relief 
Rd 

WC 
R G 

Change control for new timescales and financial profiling agreed 
by Commissioning Group.  

P
age 96



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                                             
 

LGF/16/17/010/JNC17 M4 J17 Capacity 
Improvement 

WC 
G G 

Tender process in progress to appoint contractor and complete 
Full Business Case (FBC).  Construction due to start in June 
2017. 

LGF/1617/009/UFB Ultra Fast 
Broadband 

WC 
G G 

Tender process underway to appoint contractor by April 2017. 

LGF/1617/010/SPHC Salisbury Plain 
Heritage Centre 

WC 
G G 

Dependent on result of application for Heritage Lottery Funding 
Highlight Report to be produced if project goes ahead. 

LGF/1617/011/SMAG Swindon Museum 
and Art Gallery 

SBC 
G G 

Dependent on result of application for Heritage Lottery Funding 
Highlight Report to be produced if project goes ahead. 

LGF/1718/001/WCS Wiltshire College - 
Salisbury 

Wiltshire 
College 

NA G 
Project initiation in process.  Highlight Report to be produced for 
next reporting cycle. 

LGF/1718/002/WCL Wiltshire College - 
Lackham 

Wiltshire 
College 

NA G 
Project initiation in process.  Highlight Report to be produced for 
next reporting cycle. 

LGF/1718/003/MAL Salisbury Central 
Car Park and 
Maltings 

WC 
NA G 

Project initiation in process.  Highlight Report to be produced for 
next reporting cycle. 

 
 
Financial Summary: 
 
 

 2016/2017 Total 

£Ms 
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

LGF Profile 0.484 2.547 1.753 4.716 9.499 

LGF Actual 0.062 1.406 1.521 0.364* 3.354 

* to date  

P
age 97



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                                             
 

 
 

Department for Transport – LGF (Growth Deal 1) 

Project Ref 
 

Project Name Lead 
Delivery 
Partner 

Previous Current Notes 

LGF/1516/003/EV (i) New  Eastern 
Villages - Great 
Stall Bridge 

SBC 
AG AG 

Design work progressing.  Dependent on DfT acceptance of 
modelling - delays have occurred due to DfT resource issues. 

LGF/1516/003/EV (iia) New  Eastern 
Villages -
Greenbridge 
Roundabout 
(Package 1) 

SBC 

Complete Complete 

Construction work complete.  Lessons learned being carried out.  

LGF/1516/003/EV (iib) New  Eastern 
Villages -West of 
A419 (Package 2) 

SBC 

G G 

No work currently being carried out.  Preliminary design due Dec 
2018. 

LGF/1516/003/EV (iii) New  Eastern 
Villages A420 
Gablecross 

SBC 

AG AR 

Delays have occurred with CH2M modelling and handover to 
Atkins, putting current timescales at risk. 

 
Financial Summary: 
 

 2016/2017 Total 

£Ms 
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

LGF Profile 0.634 0.775 0 0.03 1.439 

LGF Actual 0.634 0.775 0 0* 1.409 

*to date 

P
age 98



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                                             
 

Department for Transport - Retained 

Project Ref 
 

Project Name Lead 
Delivery 
Partner 

Previous Current Notes 

LGF/1516/003/EV (iv) New  Eastern 
Villages Southern 
Connector Road 

SBC 

G G 

Design work progressing to plan.  No current issues.  

LGF/1516/003/EV (v) New  Eastern 
Villages White Hart 
Junction 

SBC 

G G 

Design work progressing, though have experienced delays due to 
modelling reviews.  Revised layout to go to Programme Board for 
approval.   

LGF/1516/003/EV (vi) New  Eastern 
Villages Business 
Case 

SBC 

G G 

Comments on 2014 Base Swindon Transport Model continue to 
be received from DfT and reviewed by Atkins.  Further meeting on 
21

st
 March to discuss with DfT. 

 

LGF/1617/002/WI 
 

Wichelstowe 
Infrastructure 

SBC 

G G 

Scheme in very early stages with development of programme 
ongoing.  Highlight Report to be produced when work starts. 

LGF/1617/004/CSH Chippenham 
Station Hub 

WC 

AG AG 

OBC for Phase 1 to be submitted to May 2017 Board. 

 
Financial Summary: 

 2016/2017 Total 

£Ms 
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

LGF Profile 0.057 -0.094 0.388 2.339 2.69 

LGF Actual 0.089 -0.031 0.066 0.058* 0.181 

                                   *to date 

P
age 99



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                                             
 

City Deal 

Project Ref 
 

Project Name Lead 
Delivery 
Partner 

Previous Current Notes 

LGF/1516/006/CD 
 

Higher Futures WC & 
SBC AR AR 

Achievement of outputs is proving slow.  Discussions held with 
BEIS.  Paper being produced for Commissioning Group and 
Board.  

 
 

Careers and Enterprise Company (CEC) 

Project Ref 
 

Project Name Lead 
Delivery 
Partner 

Previous Current Notes 

LEP/GEN/001/CEC Enterprise Advisor 
Network 

WC & 
SBC  G G 

Project going well with 40 schools/colleges & 34 Enterprise 
Advisers officially engaged with EAN since delivery began Jan 
2016.  Mentoring also about to start. 

 
 

Department of Business Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) 

Project Ref 
 

Project Name Lead 
Delivery 
Partner 

Previous Current Notes 

LEP/GEN/002/GH Growth Hub LEP 

AG AR 

RIKA Digital appointed to project manage and produce 
specification for portal development.  Have produced proposal. 
Risk of claw back of 2015/16 money by BEIS. 
 

 
 
Financial Summary: Please see individual reports 

P
age 100



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                                             
 

 

Growing Places Infrastructure Fund (GPIF) 

Project Ref 
 

Project Name Lead 
Delivery 
Partner 

Previous Current Notes 

LEP/GPIF/001/CAS GPIF – Castledown 
Business Park 

WC 
G G 

£2.54m loan paid to project in 14/15. Repayment when funding is 
required to satisfy the drawdown requirements of other projects as 
they come forward.   

LEP/GPIF/002/KIM GPIF - 
Kimmerfields 

FSL 

AR AR 

Funding agreement has been signed, but release of monies was 
dependent on recipient entering into their own funding agreement 
with a developer by the end of 2016.  A request from Swindon 
Borough Council has been granted to defer this requirement to 
March 2018.  SBC/FSL to decide if loan still required.   

LEP/GPIF/003/PL GPIF – Park Lane 
Corsham 

Bath ASU 

AG AR 

Delays have been experienced in signing the funding agreement 
due to issues with the security provided by the recipient.   A 
funding agreement is being discussed with Bath ASU.   

LEP/GPIF/004/WCH GPIF - Wichelstowe SBC 

AG AR 

There have been issues with the recipient over the complexity of 
the required funding agreement. A more simplified version is 
being looked at with discussions taking place between recipient 
and Ashfords.  SBC to decide if loan still required.    

 
Financial Summary: Graph shows that cash flow results in >£1m available for additional project/s 

  

P
age 101



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                                             
 

 
Key 
 
 
Project Status 
 

Key Red Amber 
Red 

Amber 
Green 

Green 

 
 

R AR AG G 

 
See below for RAG rating methodology 
 
 
 
Direction of Travel 
 

Project status expected to remain same going forward 
 

Project status expected to improve going forward 
 

Project status expected to get worse going forward 
 

Milestones 

BLUE – complete, GREEN - on track, AMBER - at risk, RED – will be late/is late. 

 

P
age 102



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 
March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 

RAG Rating 

 

The RAG reporting is based on the composite 

elements of probability and impact (see chart to the 

left) and splits in to the following categories: 

 GREEN: Project considered being on track, to time, 

quality and cost. 

 AMBER-GREEN: Project considered at risk of 

minor to medium impacts on time, scope and/or cost 

– requires small mitigating action. 

 AMBER-RED: Project considered at risk of medium 

to major impacts on time, scope and/or cost – 

requires mitigating action. 

 RED: Project considered at serious risk of 

significant impact on time, scope and/or cost. 

Immediate mitigating action required. 

 

RAG Scoring 

RAG rating Cost Scope Time 

  Minor cost variance on initial 
project cost may be present. 

 <1% change in total project cost 

 Deliverables and project scope 
remains unaltered. 

 Minor project slippage may be 
present but total project 
delivery remains on track. 

 <30 days total slippage. 

  Project is experiencing or 
expected to experience minor 
cost increases. 

 >1% but <5% on total project 
cost. 

 Project is experiencing or is 
expected to experience small 
changes to scope and outputs 
delivered. 

 Project is experiencing or is 
expected to experience 
slippage. 

 >30 days but <90days total 
project slippage 

  Project is experiencing or is 
expected to experience major 
increases in total project costs 

 >5% but <10% on total project 
cost. 

 Project is experiencing or is 
expected to experience major 
changes to scope and outputs 
delivered. 

 Project is experiencing major 
slippage and is due to deliver 
the project outputs and 
outcomes late. 

 >90 days slippage but <6 
Months total project slippage. 

  Project is experiencing or is 
expected to experience 
significant and major cost 
increases. 

 >10% on total project cost. 

 Project is experiencing or is 
expected to experience 
significant change to scope 
and outputs delivered. 

 Project is suffering significant 
and major delays to delivery. 

 >6 Months total project 
slippage. 

 

 

Principles of Overall Project RAG Status 

 The ‘lowest’ rating against any of the 3 areas of Cost, Scope or Time will be used for the 

overall project RAG rating. 

 

 

 

 

  Impact 

  1 
(Low) 

2 3 4 
(High) 

 1 
(Likely) 

 

 

   

2 
 

 

   

3 
 

 

   

4 
(Unlikely) 

 

 

   

P
ro

b
a

b
ili

ty
 

Page 103



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 

 

 

 

 

Local Growth Fund (Growth Deals 1 and 2) 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 104



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LGF/1516/004/PSP 
 

Porton Science Park Richard Walters Wiltshire Council 
G AG 

 

 

Project Description 

First phase of construction of Science Park, comprising 42,500 sq. ft. of laboratory and office space and related infrastructure. 

 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 
 

Milestone Baseline Revised 

Baseline (if 

applicable) 

Forecast / 

Actual 

Start on site May 2016  Oct 2016 Oct 2016 

Start construction of the frame for 
the building 

Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 

Commence full marketing (soft 
marketing already on-going)  

Apr 2016  Jan 2017 Jan 2017 

Complete construction of the 
frame 

Apr 2017 Apr 2017 May 2017 

Complete the external envelope June 2017 June 2017 Aug 2017  

Complete the internal work and 
electrical live testing 

Sept 2017 Sept 2017 Nov 2017 

Completion of incubation and 
innovation centre 

Aug 2017  Oct 2017 Dec 2017 

 

 
AG – Works: Construction commenced (on 10 October).  
Despite best efforts to manage the finding of asbestos and 
electric cables under the ground, by moving forward work on 
the Grow-on space, this has incurred a five week delay to 
works. The need to progress the main works out of sequence 
during remediation, and the requirement to ensure safe dig 
procedures on MOD land, have meant that a further five 
weeks will be required in addition, so the overall completion 
date of the project has been extended to mid-December. 
 
G – Marketing:  Website under development. Brochure 
prepared and hoarding commissioned. On-going engagement 
with prospective tenants.  Further marketing to be developed 
linked to new Science Park structure once confirmed.  
 
G – Management:  Business Plan for Science Park in 
development – to be considered by executive decision 
making bodies of Stakeholder groups.  
An ERDF Inception meeting between the Project Team and 
DCLG was re-scheduled at DCLG request, and took place in 
January.  DCLG are content that we have the relevant 
procedures and processes in place, and therefore we will be 

P
age 105



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

making a claim for ERDF by the end of February. 
 
We intend making a claim for LGF by the end of February. 

What are we spending? 
 
Total project budget of £9.6m is made up of £4m of LGF funding, £2.6m of Wiltshire Council funding, and £3m ERDF funding. 

 
Total project spend to date: £1.81m from Wiltshire Council funding.  
 

 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/18 Total 

£Ms  Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4   

Profile (LGF)  £0.667m £1.133m £0.4m  £1.8m £4.0m 

Actual (against LGF)  0 0 0    

What have we done in the past 2 months? What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 Worked with project partners to produce a draft PSP Business Plan 

 Working with prospective occupiers to confirm occupational terms 
and user requirements for incubation and Grow On space 

 Arranged a Project Inception meeting with DCLG 

 Put in claim requests for LGF and ERDF grant funds 

 Continue to progress discussions with prospective 
occupiers, seek to agree heads of terms and progress 
legals as appropriate.   

 Receive and pay invoices from the contractor 
 

Change Control Notification History 

Change Control 1 (CR002) 
Agreed in February 2016   
Change of schedule to complete in 2016/17 rather than March 2016 with associated financial re-profiling. 
 
Change Control 2 (CR008) 
Agreed in October 2016 
Changes requested to schedule with completion moved to October 2017 with associated financial re-profiling  

  

P
age 106



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LGF/1516/005/LSTF 
 

LGF Sustainable Transport 
Package 

James Jackson Swindon Borough 
Council 

AG G  

Project Description 

Package of sustainable transport schemes (Eastern Flyer cycle/pedestrian route including Covingham Drive cycle route, also 2 crossings at 
County Road and Garrard Way) 

 

What does our path look like? (Gantt Chart) Are we on track? (Issues) 
 

2016/17 Eastern Flyer  Planned Forecast/Actual 

Options assessment March 16 March 16 

Define package of works April 16 April 16 

Prelim drawings May 16 May 16 

Hand over for detail design PD May 16 June 16 

TP consultation route wide May 16 May 16 

C2 surveys July 16 July 16 

Procurement July/August 16 July/August 16 

Deliver improvement March 17 March 17 

2016/17 crossings   

Define package of works April 16 April 16 

Agree delivery mechanism May 16 May 16 

Handover project delivery May 16 October 

Deliver improvements March 17 March 17 

2016/17 Covingham Drive cycle 
route 

  

Options assessment March 16 March 16 

C2 survey March 16 March 16 

Scope of prelim design highlighting 
risks 

April 16 April 16 

TP Consultation  internal and 
external 

April/May 16 June 16 

 
2016/17 Eastern Flyer 
G – Delivery programme schedule –on-track  
 
2017/18  
G Programme – five potential packages being assessed with 14 
individual projects. These are currently being assessed and 
prioritised against SWLEP and SBC policy objectives for 
sustainable transport. 
 
G Budget – Prioritisation process will include delivery risk 
assessment to ensure that prioritised schemes can be delivered 
to time and budget. 
 

P
age 107



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Prelim design  May 16 May 16 

Handover for detail design PD May 16 June 16 

Planning Application July 16 July 16 

Detailed design July 16 July 16 

Procurement  September 16 October 16 

Deliver improvements March 17 March 17 
 

What are we spending? 
 
Total project budget = £3.75m made up of £3.75m  LGF 
 

Forecast 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/18 TOTAL 

£Ms  Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4   

LGF Capital Profile 
1.227 

 
-0.409 .322 .158 1.202 

1.25 3.75 

Actual spend 
incurred 

1.227 -0.409 .322 .158 0.045 
 1.116 

  
What have we done this month (Progress) What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 Tender awarded 

 Works started on site at Covingham and Eastern Flyer 

 Work has commenced on the 2017/18 programme 
 
 
 

 Completion of schemes on site 

 Prioritisation of 2017/18 works programme 

  

P
age 108



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Project Re Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LGF/1617/001/A350 
 

A350 Chippenham Bypass 
Dualling (Badger-Brook & 
Chequers) 

Robert Murphy Wiltshire Council 
G G 

 

 

Project Description 

Dualling of A350 at Chippenham between Badger and Brook roundabouts and dualling of approaches north and south of Chequers roundabout 

(plus works to the A4 approaches at Chequers) 

  

What does our path look like? (Gantt Chart) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 
 
 

Milestone 
Baseline 

Revised 
Baseline (if 
applicable) 

Forecast/ 
Actual 

Complete detailed 
design (for procurement) 

Nov 2016 Nov 2016 Nov 2016 

OJEU Contract Award 
Notice 

Mar 2017 Mar 2017 Mar 2017 

Full Business Case 
(FBC) submission 

Mar 2017 Mar 2017 Mar 2017 

FBC approval (by WC) Apr 2017 Apr 2017 Apr 2017 

Start of construction 
works contract 

May 2017 May 2017 May 2017 

Main construction start June 2017 June 2017 June 2017 

Mobilisation, site set up, 
traffic management and 
clearance works 

July 2017 July 2017 July 2017 

Drainage, kerbing, road 
base, surfacing, etc 
works 

May 2018 May 2018 May 2018 

 
G – Costs 

 Risk: Tender prices received from contractors may exceed 
the available budget to construct the scheme. Mitigation: 
The decision to simultaneously tender for both this 
scheme and the M4 J17 scheme achieves cost savings in 
the procurement process, and potentially achieves cost 
savings if contractors are willing to provide reduced prices 
on the basis of economies of scale. In addition, the current 
cost estimate is based on a Bill of Quantities with 
appropriate allowances for risk. Atkins has prepared a 
scheme risk register and risks will be managed through 
Wiltshire Council’s Service Delivery Team process. 

 

P
age 109



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Signs, lines, street 
lighting, etc works 

July 2018 July 2018 July 2018 

Construction complete Aug 2019 July 2018 July 2018 

Opening date Sept 2019 Aug 2018 Aug 2018 
 

What are we spending? 
 
Total project budget of £7.1m is made up of £7.1m of LGF funding, £TBC (following FBC completion) of Wiltshire Council funding. 
 

 2014/15 2015/16 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/20 Total 

£Ms   Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4     

Profile   £0.193m £0.155m £0.161m £0.161m £1.134m £2.683m £2.613m £7.1m 

Actual £0.0398m £0.0974m £0.008m £0.233m £0.334m £0.018m    £0.730m 

 
Total project spend to date: £0.730m 
 

What have we done this month (Progress) What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 Price list completed. 

 Legal team completed review of final tender documents. 

 Construction, Design and Management (CDM) Regulations 
documentation prepared for tender stage. 

 Tender documents issued on the South West Portal on 20 
January. 

 Final documents – Vol 0 Invitation to Tender (ITT) complete and 
posted 25 January. 

 Ducting for telecoms being installed and Wessex Water are 
undertaking trial holes at Chequers Roundabout (other public 
utilities work to be included in main construction works). 

 Pre-Qualification Questionnaire (PQQ) assessed. 

 ITT assessment team has been identified. 

 Brief for development of Full Business Case (FBC) issued to Atkins 
on 3 January. 

 ITT to be returned by 2pm 28 February. 

 ITT assessment to be undertaken in early March. 

 Draft FBC to be sent to ITA by 20 March. 

 Consideration of ITA comments. 

 Report on scheme and tender process outcome to be 
presented to Wiltshire Council Cabinet meeting on 4 April. 

 Revised FBC to be presented to SWLEP Transport 
Infrastructure Subgroup at meeting on 24 April. 

 Obtain Accountable Body’s S151 Officer approval of Value 
for Money statement. 

 Further consideration of advance works and site 
supervision actions. 

P
age 110



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 Contacted Independent Financial Advisor (ITA) to outline the 
process, timeline, etc. 

 Site supervision actions being developed / progressed. 
 

Change Control Notification History 

 
Change Control 1 (CR003) 
Agreed in March 2016   
Changes to scheme schedule with completion in August 2018 (previously reported at September 2019). 
Also changes to overall scheme cost but no change to LGF financial requirements.  
 
Change Control 2 (CR019) 
Agreed in January 2017 
Changes requested to drawdown schedule to enable the grant agreement to be updated. 

 
 

  

P
age 111



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LGF/1617/003/SRT  
 

Rapid Transit James Jackson Swindon Borough 
Council 

AG AG  

Project Description 

Bus priority measures on the strategic bus corridors linking Wichelstowe, NEV and North Swindon to the town centre 

 

What does our path look like? (Gantt Chart) Are we on track? (Issues) 
 Actual 

Wichelstowe - Options Assessment 
report 

Updating 
March 2016 

March 2016 

Public/Old Town Consultation stage 1 September 2016 September 2016 

Prepare base model for option testing October 2016 October 2016  

Appraisal Specification report sent to 
Independent Technical Adviser 

Sept 2016 Sept 2016  

Define Appraisal methodology for LEP November 2016 November 2016  

Mannington Roundabout further 
modelling options 

November 2016 February 2017 

Old Town further modelling of scheme 
options 

November 2016 February 2017 

Preliminary Design Old Town, Pipers 
Way, Mannington 

December 2016 January 2017 

Develop and submit Business Case March 2017 March 2017 

Public/Old Town consultation stage 2 January 2017 November 2016 

Seek approval for scheme designs 
from Strategic Highways Programme 
Board/LEP 

February 2017 April 2017 

Summary  and overview 
This programme sets out the detail related to the first Bus Rapid 
Transit route between Wichelstowe and Swindon Town Centre. 
This is to be delivered during the period 2017/18. During the 
period 2017/18 an options assessment report for the second 
corridor will be undertaken. The scheme between Tadpole Farm 
in north Swindon and the town centre will be defined ready for 
delivery in 2018/19. Finally a third corridor between New Eastern 
Villages and the town centre will have an options assessment 
undertaken during 2018/19, this will take into account the final 
agreed “design and access strategy” being developed as part of 
the DfT retained schemes business case. 

 
AG – Programme – High Level consultation has taken place (late 

2016). Preliminary designs have been refined following this and 
consultation on detailed proposals for Old Town and Mannington 
is organised for late February. Micro simulation modelling has 
been commissioned on these proposals and the outputs are 
expected in February. 
G – OAR – To be updated following additional survey information 
and modelling work. Further site visits and internal input 
developing scheme options. 
G – Budget – Scheme options are currently being developed in 
greater detail using the 2016/17 budget. 
G – ASR and BC scope – Draft Business Case is being 

P
age 112



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 

Review and upgrade software and/or 
setup/calibration for bus priority at 
Groundwell Road, Wootton Bassett 
Road, East Wichel Way. 

April 2017 April 2017 

Handover to project delivery for 
detailed design. 

April 2017 April 2017 

Commence process and preparation 
for start of the procurement exercise. 

April 2017 April 2017 

progressed. 

What are we spending? 

 
Total project budget = £9.85m made up of £9.85m LGF 
 

£m 2016/17 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 TOTAL 

Profiled 
LGF 

0.16 3.28 3.28 3.12 9.85 

Actual 
LGF 

0.027    0.027 

 
 

What have we done this month (Progress) What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 Programme – Further consultation and communication with key 
stakeholders.  

 Scheme progress – Further development of preliminary designs for 
scheme options identified within the OAR 

 

 Undertake consultation on the detailed proposals for Old 
Town and Mannington (February 2017) 

 Completion of modelling for Old Town and Mannington 
(February 2017) 

 Analysis of consultation responses and modelling output 
and refinement of scheme designs 

 Completion of business case and submission to ITA/LEP 

 Agreement to proceed following consultation with Lead 
Member and SRO. 
 

P
age 113



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Change Control Notification History 

Change Control 1 (CR017) 
Agreed in October 2016 
Temporary transfer of £3.12m budget to Jnc 16 project 

  

P
age 114



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LGF/1617/006/JNC16 
 
 
 

M4 Junction 16 Tim Mann Swindon Borough 
Council 

AG AG 
 

Project Description 

Junction improvements at Junction 16 of the M4, to increase capacity and reduce congestion 

 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 

 
 

Milestone Forecast Actual 

Issue tender (PQQ) Jan 2016 Jan 2016 

Achieve technical approval Mar 2016 Mar 2016 

Issue tender (ITT) Apr 2016 April 2016 

Appoint contractor Sep 2016 Sept 2016 

Mobilise and start construction Oct 2016 Oct 2016 

Complete construction Mar 2018 Mar 2018 

G – Funding – Awaiting final decision on GPIF funding.  
AG – Design – Contractor led design submissions ongoing. 
AG – Construction – Major earthworks due to commence in 
March 2017. This is susceptible to wet weather and therefore 
presents a risk to the programme.  Other significant risks include 
performance of statutory undertakers.   
First layer of surfacing has encountered quality issues. 
G – Programme – On track for completion March 2018. 
G – Project Mgt – Comms are ongoing and being well received. 

What are we spending? 
Total project budget = £12.613m made up of £5.92m LGF and £6.69m SBC/developer contributions. 
 

                  *to date 
 

£3.12m to be paid back to Rapid Transit budget in 2019/20. 
 

 2014/15 2015/16 2016/2017 2017/
18 

2018/
19 

2019/
20 

Total 

£Ms   Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4     

Profile (LGF) 0.28 0.88 -0.13 0.81 0.90 3.09 3.479  -3.12 5.92 

LGF Actual 0.28 0.88 -0.13 0.81 0.90 0.28*    3.033 

P
age 115



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

What have we done this month? What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 Construction – Works continue on the M4 Eastbound Off Slip 
Road. Earthworks and trail holes are taking place on the northern 
and southern sections of the Junctions.  Traffic management has 
been installed on the westbound off slip. 

 Project Mgt – Continued comms  
 

 Funding – Conclude GPIF discussions (TM, Mar 17).  

 Construction – Resolve surfacing issue and continue 
works to M4 Eastbound Off Slip and northern and 
southern sections. Commence work on M4 Westbound Off 
Slip Road and continue construction of temporary access 
to Upper Studley Farm.  Commence major import of clay 
for embankments (TM, Feb/Mar 17). 

 Project Mgt – Continue comms (TM, ongoing) 

Change Control Notification History 

 
Change Control 1 (CR017) 
Agreed in October 2016 
Temporary transfer of £3.12m budget from Rapid Transit project 

 

  

P
age 116



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LGF/1617/007/MH Mansion House (Corsham) Kaz Van Den Berg Wiltshire Council 
G AG 

 

 

Project Description 

Renovation and conversion of Mansion House building in Corsham to create incubation space for businesses working within the digital or 
innovation sectors and teaching space to facilitate the opportunity to deliver both higher-education courses and schools engagement. 

 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 

 

Milestone Baseline Revised 

Baseline (if 

applicable) 

Forecast/ 

Actual 

Appoint Project Team Nov/Dec 2015 Feb 2016 Feb 2016 

 

Detailed design May 2016 Oct 2016 Oct 2016 

 

Submit planning 

application 

May 2016 Nov 2016 Nov 2016 

Tender issue (PIN) June 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 

 

Planning application 

approval 

July 2016 Feb 2017 Apr 2017 

Stage 1 Contract 

award 

Sept 2016 May 2017 April 2017 

Stage 2 Contract 

award 

n/a n/a July 2017 

 
Programme 

 
AG – Planning application was submitted in November 2016 - 
Mansion House Planning Application Link. The Mansion House 
project team is currently working with consultees and key 
stakeholders to address questions and issues raised during the 
planning consultation. 
 
The Georgian Group have raised an objection to the planning 
application – the Council and project team have been attempting 
to organise a meeting to discuss the amended designs which 
have been produced to address issues raised during the 
consultation. 
 
The application will be determined at Planning Committee – this 
has yet to be scheduled. 
 
AG - Enabling works package cannot be undertaken until 
planning consent received. Preparation of tender pack delayed 
due to rework on planning application. 
 
 

P
age 117

http://unidoc.wiltshire.gov.uk/UniDoc/Document/Search/DSA,870109


 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Construction 

commence 

Sept 2016 June 2017 July 2017 

Construction complete June 2017 Dec 2017 

 

Jan 2018 

 

 
 
 

What are we spending? 
 
Total project budget of £2.5m is made up of LGF funding only. As a local match contribution Wiltshire Council has invested the building, valued 
at between £1million and £1.5million in to the project. 
 

 2014/15 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/18 2018/19 Total 

£Ms   Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4    
Profile (LGF)  £0.030m £0.005m £0.025m £0.130m £0.100m £2.170m £0.050m £2.5m 

Actual £0.001m £0.030m £0.013m £0.024m £0.049m £0.010m   £0.127m 

 
Total project spend to date £0.127m 

 
What have we done this month? What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 Engaged with conservation regarding feedback on planning 
application 

 Revised designs in response to feedback  

 Issued PIN notice for operational procurement 

 Issued PIN notice for construction works 

 Asbestos debris removed from Mansion House (it is now 
accessible again) 
 

 Prepare and undertake operational market engagement 
event (10 March) 

 Preparation of tender pack for enabling works (completion 
and issue date to be revised following additional planning 
works required delaying programme) 

 Preparation of tender pack for Stage 1 (completion and 
issue date to be revised following additional planning 
works required delaying programme) 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 118



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Change Control Notification History 

 
Change Control 1 (CR001) 
Agreed in September 2015. 
Changes to scope and deliverables. 
 
Change Control 2 (CR009) 
Agreed in October 2016 
Changes to schedule. Updating the project schedule in line with what ARUP have prepared. Project completion December 2017. 
 

 
  

P
age 119



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LGF/1617/008/SBX  
 

Swindon Bus Exchange Simon Bridgen Swindon Borough 

Council 
R R 

 

Project Description 

New bus exchange facility to improve connectivity in and around the town, also to improve the attractiveness of the town centre 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 

 
Milestone Baseline Forecast/Actual 

Funding Approval (SBC) 2014 Completed 

Legal Agreement with Bus 

Operators 

2014 Completed 

LGF approval 2014 Completed 

CPO for land approved January 2016 February 2016 

Carfax Car Park demolition 

completed 

January 2016 January 2016 

Construction of new Health Centre 

commences 

February 2016 January 2016 

Concept Design Review 

completed and stakeholder 

engagement undertaken 

 March 2017 

Detailed design completed and 

reserved matters planning 

application submitted 

March 2016 June 2017 

Stopping up Order for Bus 

Exchange granted 

April 2016 September 2017 

Planning permission granted  July 2016 September 2017 

Build Contract procured September 2016 March 2018 

Temporary Bus Station 

construction start 

December 2016 August 2018 

Temporary Bus Station opens March 2017 October 2018 

 
AR – Programme: The CPO process has now been successfully 
concluded with the dismissal of the Judicial Review against the 
decision to grant the CPO.  This means that the land acquisition 
process can now be progressed. 
 
The Health Centre element of the scheme is generally 
progressing to programme, but the handover date of the new 
building to the NHS has been put back to May 2017. The delays 
were caused by delay in the discharge of planning conditions and 
delay with the grant of the pavement/highways licence. 
 
AR – Design: The design review of the Bus Exchange options 
has commenced, and is expected to be concluded by March 
2017.  The emerging designs have been discussed with both 
major bus operators (Stagecoach and Thamesdown) during 
February.  The resulting options will then undergo further 
stakeholder consultation prior to commencing the detailed design 
process. 
 
 
 
 

P
age 120



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Construction start on site September 2016 October 2018 

NHS take possession of new 

Health Centre 

February 2017 May 2017 

Bus Exchange construction 

completes 

May 2018 June 2019 

 

 

What are we spending? 

 
Total project budget = £6m made up of £3m LGF and £3m SBC/Developer contribution 
 

 
 

 

 2016/2017 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total 

£Ms Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4     

Profile (LGF) 0 0 0 0 0.737 2.063 0.2 3.00 

Actual (against LGF) 0 0      0 0     

What have we done in the past 2 months? What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 Construction of the new Health Centre is progressing well. 

 The design review of Bus Exchange and Fleming Way options has 
progressed, with concept designs being discussed with both major 
bus operators and other stakeholders during February.  The final 
draft report from the consultants has been received and is being 
reviewed. 

 The process of enforcing the CPO and progressing the land 
acquisition has commenced. 

 Complete the review of Bus Exchange options. 

 Undertake a further round of engagement with 
stakeholders on the design options. 

 Prepare the design brief ready for issue once the design 
options have been agreed following stakeholder 
discussion. 

 

 
  

P
age 121



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LGF/1617/009/YWA A350 Yarnbrook/West Ashton 
Relief Road 

Martin Aldam Wiltshire Council 
R G 

 

 

Project Description 

Construction of a relief road from the A350 in the Yarnbrook and West Ashton area located to the south east of Trowbridge.  The scheme will 
unlock the Ashton Park development of 2,600 homes and 15ha of employment land. 

 

What does our path look like? (Gantt Chart) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 
 

Milestone Baseline Revised 

Baseline (if 

applicable) 

Forecast / 

Actual 

OBC approval Apr 2015 Apr 2015 Apr 2015 

Planning application 
submission by 
developer 

May 2015 May 2015 May 2015 

Outline planning 
permission approval 

Feb 2016 to 
May 2016 

Apr 2018 Apr 2018 

Procurement / 
Tendering 

Sept 2016 to 
Feb 2017 

Dec 20181 Dec 2018 

Develop Full 
Business Case 

Oct 2016 – 
May 2017 

Dec 2018 Dec 2018 

FBC submission to 
SWLEP Board 

May 2017 Jan 2019 Jan 2019 

FBC approval July 2017 Mar 2019 Mar 2019 

Construction Apr 2018 – 
Mar 2021 

Apr 2019 to 
Apr 2021 

Apr 2019 to 
Apr 2021 

 

 
G – Programme 
A LGF Project Change Control Notification has been submitted 
to and approved by the SWLEP Commissioning Group. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                
1
 Procurement and Tendering exercise will be carried out by the Developer.  LEP role is to ensure VFM.   

P
age 122



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 

What are we spending? 
 

Total project budget of £17.094m (to be refined on completion of the FBC) is made up of £5.5m of LGF funding, and £11.594m private sector 
funding. 

 
 

 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/21 Total 

£Ms Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4      

Profile    £0.117m     £2.3m £3.1m £5.5m 

Actual £0.117m        £0.117m 

 
Total project spend to date: £0.117m 

What have we done this month (Progress) What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 Further consideration of the Ashton Park planning 
application including phasing of the development in 
relation to the provision of the YWARR. 

 A LGF Project Change Control Notification has been 
submitted to and approved by the SWLEP Commissioning 
Group. 
 

 Continue to work through the planning application process (Michael 
Kilmister, Development Control Team Leader (Central)). 

 Ongoing discussions with the Ashton Park developer regarding 
scheme delivery (Phil Tilley, Highways Development Control 
Officer). 

 

Change Control Notification History 

 
Change Control 1 (CR020) 
Agreed in March 2017. 
New milestones and financial profiling to reflect delay due to environmental issues.  
 

 
  

P
age 123



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LGF/16/17/010/JNC17 M4 J17 Capacity Improvement Kingsley Hampton Wiltshire Council 
G G 

 

 

Project Description 

Capacity Improvements to M4 Junction 17 in order to support development in Chippenham. 

 

What does our path look like? (Gantt Chart) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 
 

Milestone ( * = critical path 
date) 

Baseline Revised 
Baseline 
(if 
applicable) 

Forecast / 
Actual 

Signal specification sent to 
Highways England/ Skanska 

Sept 2016 Sept 2016 Sept 2016 

Outline Business Case (OBC) 
complete 

Sept 2016 Oct 2016 Oct 2016 

Complete detailed design (for 
procurement)* 

Sept 2016 Oct 2016 Oct 2016 

Issue invitations to submit 
Participation Requests 

Oct 2016 Oct 2016 Oct 2016 

OBC approval Nov 2016 Nov 2016 Nov 2016 

Prior Information Notice (PIN) 
published* 

Dec 2016 Dec 2016 Dec 2016 

Tender recommendation* Feb 2017 Feb 2017 Feb 2017 

Full Business Case (FBC) 
submission* 

Feb 2017 Feb 2017 Feb 2017 

FBC approval (WC)* Jan 2017 Mar 2017 Apr 2017 

Main construction start* June 2017 June 2017 June 2017 

Construction complete* Oct 2017 Aug 2017 Aug 2017 

 
G – Programme 

 Risk: Consultation and approval delay of scheme and 
associated works from Highways England. 

 
G – Costs  
 

 Risk: The tender prices received from contractors may 
exceed the available budget to construct the scheme. 
Mitigation: The decision to simultaneously tender for both 
this scheme and the A350 Chippenham Bypass Dualling 
(Badger-Brook & Chequers) scheme achieves cost 
savings in the procurement process, and potentially 
achieves cost savings if contractors are willing to provide 
reduced prices on the basis of economies of scale. In 
addition, the current cost estimate is based on a Bill of 
Quantities with appropriate allowances for risk. Atkins has 
prepared a scheme risk register and risks will be managed 
through Wiltshire Council’s Service Delivery Team 
process. 
 

 

P
age 124



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Opening date Oct 2017 Aug 2017 Aug 2017 
 

What are we spending? 
 
Total project budget of £0.921m (to be refined on completion of the FBC) is made up of £0.5m of LGF funding, and £0.7m Highways England 
funding (to be confirmed). 
 

 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 Total 

£Ms Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4     

Profile £0.036m £0.1m     £0.364m £0.5m 

Actual £0.037m £0.015m £0.049m £0.009m    £0.11m 
 

Total project spend to date: £0.11m 

 

What have we done this month (Progress) What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 Price list completed. 

 Legal team completed review of final tender documents. 

 Construction, Design and Management (CDM) Regulations 
documentation prepared for tender stage. 

 Tender documents issued on the South West Portal on 20 
January. 

 Final documents – Vol 0 Invitation to Tender (ITT) complete and 
posted 25 January. 

 Pre-Qualification Questionnaire (PQQ) assessed. 

 ITT assessment team has been identified. 

 Brief for development of Full Business Case (FBC) issued to Atkins 
on 3 January. 

 Contacted Independent Financial Advisor (ITA) to outline the 
process, timeline, etc. 

 Site supervision actions being developed / progressed. 
 

 ITT to be returned by 2pm 28 February. 

 ITT assessment to be undertaken in early March. 

 Draft FBC to be sent to ITA by 20 March. 

 Consideration of ITA comments. 

 Report on scheme and tender outcome to be presented to 
Wiltshire Council Cabinet meeting on 4 April. 

 Revised FBC to be presented to SWLEP Transport 
Infrastructure Subgroup at meeting on 24 April. 

 Obtain Accountable Body’s S151 Officer approval of Value 
for Money statement. 

 Further consideration of advance works and site 
supervision actions. 

P
age 125



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Change Control Notification History 

 
Change Control 1 (CR010) 
Agreed in October 2016 
Changes requested to schedule. To enable M4 Junction 17 Improvements to be delivered and completed in 2017/18 instead of 2019/20 as 
originally planned.  Project completion scheduled for August 2017. 
 
Change Control 2 (CR018) 
Agreed in January 2017 
Changes requested to drawdown schedule to enable the grant agreement to be updated. 
 
 

  

P
age 126



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

TBC by the SWLEP Ultrafast Broadband 
Procurement 

Sarah Cosentino Wiltshire Council 
(Wiltshire Online 
(WOL) Team) 

G G 
 

  

Project Description 

To procure and deploy an Ultrafast / NGA broadband solution in Wiltshire.  

 

 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 

 
Milestone Baseline Forecast/Actual 

BDUK “B2” Assurance 

Checkpoint passed 

Nov 2016 Nov 2016  

OJEU ITT Scheduled 

Launch 

Nov 2016 Nov 2016 

Closing date for Bidder 

Signed “Expression of 

Interest” 

Dec 2016 Dec 2016 

ITT Bidder Response 

deadline 

Feb 2017 Feb 2017 

Bidder Evaluation Process Mar 2017 Mar 2017 

Contract Finalisation Mar 2017 Mar 2017 

BDUK Assurance 

Checkpoint “C”  

Mar 2017 Mar 2017 

Contract Signature / Sealing Apr 2017 Apr 2017 

 
This timeline currently considers the procurement process only, as known 
by the Project & Procurement Team. As an iterative process, more 

 
G – Programme: ITT launched – On schedule. 
 
 
 
   

P
age 127



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

information will follow regarding deployment milestones, phasing of roll-
out, etc., once the delivery model has been received and the contract has 
been awarded to a supplier. 
 

What are we spending? 
 
Total project budget of £3m is made up of £1m of LGF funding, (plus £2m of BDUK grant funding.) 
 
 2017/2018 Total 

£Ms Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  

Profile (LGF)   £0.5m £0.5m £1m 

Actual (against 
LGF) 

     

 

What have we done in the past 2 months? What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 ITT Bidder clarification process from 28th November 2016 to 13th 
February 2017 – two-way dialogue with all potential bidders. 

 Signed Bidders “Expression of Interest” and “Code of Conduct” 
deadline 28th December 2016. 

 ITT Process – 12 + weeks commencing 28th November 2016, moving 
towards bidder evaluation in late February 2017. 

 Tailored Public Consultation responses to residents, communities and 
suppliers. 

 Published new NGA Maps and State Aid Public Consultation Closure 
Report.  

 ITT response deadline – 20th February. 

 Evaluate bidder responses – 21st Feb – 21st March. 

 Local Body initial governance – 21st March. 

 Bidders notified of evaluation outcome – 21st March. 

 Standstill period – 22nd March – 5th April. 

 Contract finalisation – 21st March – 28th March. 

 DCMS Approvals (Checkpoint “C”) including State Aid and 

Funding – 21st March – 28th March. 

 Local Body final governance & Contract Award – 6th April. 

 Contract Signature / Sealing – 7th April. 

Change Control Notification History 

N/A  
 

  

P
age 128



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 

 

 

 

 

Department for Transport – LGF (Growth Deal 1) 

 

 

  

P
age 129



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
Project Ref 

Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LGF/1516/003/EV(i) New  Eastern Villages Great 
Stall Bridge  

Peter Morgan Swindon Borough 
Council 

AG AG 
 

Project Description 

New bridge across the A419 connecting the NEV site with East Swindon 

 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 

 

Milestone 
Baseline Revised 

Baseline 
Forecast/Actual 

Viability Review n/a March 2016 March 2016 

Preliminary design 

completed 

July 2016 
March 2017 March 2017 

Planning application 

granted 

August 2017 
October 2017 October 2017 

(SoS call in/Public 

Inquiry) 

August 2018 
October 2018 October 2018 

D&B Tender Process n/a December 2017 December 2017 

Detailed Design August 2019 December 2018 December 2018 

Construction commence January 2021 January 2021 January 2021 

Construction complete May 2022 May 2022 May 2022 
 

AG– Cost  

 Currently within budget however forecast spend 
profile and LGF grant profile for 2018/19 will need 
to be reviewed. 

 
AG – Project scope  

 Modelling review for NEV may result in a change 
of scope from the original scheme 

 Options to be considered for specification include 
all traffic rather than the original scope of public 
transport, pedestrian and cycle use. 

 
AG – Programme  

 Modelling review has been undertaken.  

 This review has been commissioned to reflect the 
outline planning applications submitted for parts of 
the NEV development.  

 See business case highlight report for details of 
modelling issues 

 

 
 
 

P
age 130



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 

What are we spending? 

  
Total project budget= £17.922m made up of £7.6m LGF and £10.322m SBC/developer contribution 

 
 15-16 16-17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 TOTAL 

 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4     

Approved LGF 
Profile 

0 0 0 0 0 0.5 1.761 4.696 0.643 7.6 

Actual Spend 
Incurred 

          

 

 
What have we done in the last 2 months What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 

 Commissioned Atkins to carry out preliminary design.   Currently in 
initial stages. 

 Progressed Buildability Contract with Highways England suppliers. 

 Received modelling report. 

 Met with SBC’s Highways Asset Managers to confirm design 
standards 

 

 

 Continue preliminary design 

 Confirm programme. 

 Consult Programme Board to update Milestones 

Change control Notification History 

 
Change Control 1 (CR013) 
Agreed in October 2016 
Change of schedule to accommodate design and build programme. End dates are unchanged but interim milestones have moved. Change 
control request for spend profile to follow. 
 

  

P
age 131



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LGF/1516/003/EV(iia) NEV - Greenbridge 
Roundabout 

Peter Morgan SBC 
AG Complete 

 

Project Description 

A4312/B4006 junction improvement to increase capacity and improve pedestrian cycle movement  

 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 

 

Milestone Baseline Forecast/Actual 

Design completed 25 September  2015 September 15 

Tender issued December 2015 08 December 15 

Tender returns Feb 2016 02 Feb 2016 

Start on site March 2016 April 2016 

Complete on site November 2016 January 2017 
 

 
G – Cost – On budget 
G - Quality – Currently no issues with quality  
Time – Programme completion January 2017  

What are we spending? 
Total project budget = £5.3m made up of £2m LGF and £3.3m SBC/developer contributions 
 

 15-16 16-17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 TOTAL 

 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4     

Approved LGF 
Profile 

0.591 0.612 0.797   0 0 0 0 2.000 

Actual Spend 
Incurred (LGF) 

0.591 0.612 0.797       2.000 

 

What have we done in the last 2 months What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 Main construction works are now completed 
 

 Lessons learnt review  

 Project Closure 

 Remedial/defect works over the next 12 months 

  

P
age 132



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LGF/1516/003/EV(iib) New  Eastern Villages 
Mitigation West of A419 
Package 2 

Peter Morgan Swindon Borough 
Council 

G G  

Project Description 

Traffic management measures and junction improvements within East Swindon 

 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues / Risks) 

 

Milestone Baseline Forecast / Actual 

Initial site surveys November 
2015 

November 2015 

Preliminary design December 
2018 

December 2018 

Detailed Design/tender 
documents 

November 
2019 

November 2019 

Complete on site March 2021 March 2021 
 

G – Cost – Project still within original predicted budget.  
Scheme spend estimated to start in 2019/20. 
Anticipated LEP grant of £0.5m in 19/20 and £1.5m in 20/21. 
G - Quality – Currently no issues with quality.  
G – Time – Programme still on original path. 

What are we spending? 
 15-16 16-17 Total  17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 TOTAL 

 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4       

Approved 
LGF Profile 

0 
 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.500 1.500 0 2.000 

Actual Spend 
Incurred 

 0 0 0 0 0 0       

Total project budget = £2.613m made up of £2m LGF and £0.613m SBC funding/developer contributions 
What have we done in the last 2 months What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

.  
N/A 

 
N/A 

   

P
age 133



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery 

Partner 

Previous Current Direction 

LGF/1516/003/EV(iii) 
New  Eastern Villages A420 

Gablecross & Police Station 

Robert 

Sweetnam 

Swindon Borough 

Council 
AG AR 

 

 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 
 

Milestone Baseline Forecast/Actual 

Feasibility modelling October 2016 October 2016 

Preliminary design March 2017 March 2017 

D&B Tender Process December 2017 December 2017 

Detailed design August 2018 August 2018 

Construction commence September 2018 September 2018 

Construction complete August 2019 August 2019 
 

 
AG – Costs  

 Feasibility modelling identified outline design has insufficient capacity.  
Further modelling of alternative junction options should provide clarity. 

 
G – Quality  

 Currently no issues with quality.  
 
AR – Time  

 Delays have occurred with CH2M modelling. Once results are received, 
Atkins will progress preliminary design and programme. Change control 
submitted. 

What are we spending? 
 

 15-16 16-17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 
TOTAL 

 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4      

Approved LGF 
Profile 

0.041 
0.022 -0.022 0.000 0.03 0.5 1.5 0.429   2.500 

Actual Spend 
Incurred (LGF) 

0.041 
0.022 -0.022 0.000 0.03 

   
  0.041 

Total project spend to date = £0.041m out of a total project budget of £5.37m 
 
 
 

P
age 134



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

What have we done in the last 2 months What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 
 

 Reviewed the modelling report from CH2M  

 Initial meeting held with Atkins regarding preliminary design and 
programme 

 Met with SBC Asset Managers to confirm design standards 

 

 Review additional CH2M junction options for Gablecross  

 Atkins Modelling of junction options 

 Recommend a preferred solution for preliminary design 

 Consult Programme Board to update Milestones 
 
 

Change control Notification History 

Change Control 1 (CR012) 
Agreed in October 2016 
Change of schedule to accommodate design and build programme. End dates are unchanged but interim milestones have moved. Change control 
request for spend profile to follow. 
 
Change Control 2 (CR020) 
Submitted in March 2017 
Change of financial profiling in accordance with above change control regarding milestones as above. 

 

 

  

P
age 135



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 

 

 

 

 

Department for Transport - Retained 

 

 

  

P
age 136



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

DFT/1516/003/EV(iv) New  Eastern Villages 

Southern Connector Road 

Tom Campbell Swindon Borough 

Council 

G G 

 

 

Project Description 

New link road connecting the NEV with the A419 at Commonhead Interchange 

What does our path look like? (Milestones)  Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 
 

 
Baseline Revised 

Baseline 
Forecast/Actual 

Preliminary survey work 
n/a 

January 2016 February 2016 

Preliminary design (Stage 2) 
February 2016 

May 2017 May 2017 

Planning Consent 
April 2017 

November 2017 November 2017 

Land acquisition (CPO) 

complete 

August 2017 
February 2019 February 2019 

(SoS call in/Public Inquiry) 
May 2018 

November 2018 November 2018 

D&B Tender Process 
n/a 

June 2018 June 2018 

Detailed Design 
April 2019 

June 2019 June 2019 

Construction Commence 
October 2019 

October 2019 October 2019 

Construction Complete 
March 2021 

March 2021 March 2021 

G – Cost 

 Risk mitigation allowance and land costs  
 
G – Quality – No quality issues at current time. 
 
G – Time 

 The project is on track to achieve overall 
construction milestone 
 

G – Programme 

 Archaeological remains found on preferred 
alignment / will require alignment amendment. 

 New lead consultant updating programme. 

P
age 137



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

What are we spending? 
 

Total project budget = £20.95m made up of £11.6m LGF and £9.35m SBC/developer contributions 

 15-16 16-17 Total  17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 TOTAL 

 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4      

Profile 
(LGF) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5.800 5.800 11.600 

Actual 
(LGF) 

0 
 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  

 
 

 What have we done in the last 2 months What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 

 Commenced induction process with new provider, Atkins. 

 Hydrogeological investigations, Arboriculture and geophysical surveys 

 Commissioned breeding bird surveys. 

 Commissioned additional geophysical surveys 

 Consultation with Historic England 

 Met with Highways England CDF framework contractors 

 Appointed Land Agent 

 Met with SBC’s Highways Asset Managers to agree design standards 
 
 

 

 Continue hydrogeological surveys 

 Continue with ecology surveys 

 Produce Constraints Plan 

 Confirm highway alignment 

 Commission ground investigation surveys 

 Complete arboriculture report 

 Agree programme with new provider 

 Examine highway layout options at Commonhead 
end and Wanborough Road junction 

 Consult Programme Board to update Milestones 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 138



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Change Control Notification History 

 
Change Control 1 (CR005) 
Agreed in April 2016 
Slip of planning application date by 6 months 
 
Change Control 2 (CR014) 
 
Agreed in October 2016 
Change of schedule to accommodate design and build programme. End dates are unchanged but interim milestones have moved. Change control 
request for spend profile to follow. 

 
 
 
  

P
age 139



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
Project Ref 

Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

DFT/1516/003/EV(v) New  Eastern Villages White 
Hart Junction 

Peter Morgan Swindon Borough 
Council 

G G 
 

 

Project Description 

Improvement of A419/A420 Interchange 

 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 

 
Milestone Baseline Revised 

Baseline 
Forecast/Actual 

Preliminary design stage 
1 

February 2015 February 2015 February 2015 

Preliminary design stage 
2 

December 2015 March 2017 March 2017 

Planning application 
granted 

February 2017 October 2017 October 2017 

Land acquisition (CPO) June 2017 October 2017 October 2017 

(SoS call in/Public 
Inquiry) 

February 2018 October 2018 October 2018 

D&B Tender Process  n/a December 2017 December 2017 

Detailed design June 2018 December 2018 December 2018 

Construction commence January 2019 March 2019 March 2019 

Construction complete February 2021 February 2021 February 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
G – Cost 

 Cost estimates will be refined post preliminary design 

 Awaiting update on land costs for potential CPO 

 Results of the QRA have increased the estimate by 
£2m 

 
G – Quality – Currently no issues with quality 
 
G – Time  

 Modelling review has been undertaken.   Revised 
layout to go to Programme Board for approval, prior to 
full public consultation. 

 

P
age 140



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

What are we spending? 

  
Total project budget = £32.8m made up of £22.5m LGF and £10.3m SBC/developer contributions 

 
 15-16 16-17 Total  17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 TOTAL 

 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4      

Approved LGF Profile 0 
 

0 0 0 0.600 0.600 0.400 0 11.000 10.500 22.500 

Actual Spend Incurred 
(LGF) 

0 
 

0 0 0        

 

 

What have we done in the past two months? What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 

 Commissioned Atkins to carry out preliminary design. Currently in 
initial stages of agreeing the brief. 

 Progressed Buildability Contract with Highways England suppliers. 

 Received modelling report and under review by SBC 

 Met with SBC’s Highways Asset Managers to confirm design 
standards 

 

 Continue preliminary design 

 Go to Programme Board for approval of re-modelled 
design. 

 Confirm programme. 

 Consult Programme Board to update Milestones 
 

Change control notification history 

Change Control 1 (CR006) 
Agreed in April 2016 
Slip of design milestone 2 by 6 months 
 
Change Control 2 (CR015) 
Agreed in October 2016 
Change of schedule to accommodate design and build programme – end date unchanged but significant change within the programme. Spend 
profile change control request to follow 

  

P
age 141



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LGF/1516/003/EV (vi) New Eastern Villages Business 

Case 

Laura Jones Swindon Borough 

Council 
 G G 

 

Project Description 

Preparing and presenting the Outline Business Case to DfT to secure full scheme funding approval 

 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 
 

Milestone Baseline Revised Baseline Forecast/Actual 

Management and Commercial 

Case workshops completed 

September 2015 September 2015 Completed 

Options Appraisal Report 

completed 

December 2015 December 2015 Completed 

Appraisal Specification Report 

completed 

December 2015 May 2016 Completed 

Submission of OAR and ASR to 

DfT for review 

December 2015 June 2016 Completed 

Receipt of comments from DfT 

and agreement of next stage 

January 2016 December 2016 February 2017 

Completion of Outline Business 

Case 

April 2016 May 2017 May 2017 

 

 
G – Programme: Comments from DfT have been 
received on the 2014 Base Swindon Transport 
Model. SBC’s new professional services consultant 
[Atkins] is now in place and has been briefed on the 
model/DfT comments.  Atkins has reviewed the DfT 
comments and a response has been made to the 
DfT.  Further comments have been received from 
the DfT and Atkins is reviewing these for SBC.  A 
meeting has been set up for 21st March with the 
DfT.  A Task Order is in place with Atkins for the 
forecast modelling work, and the work proposal has 
been received from Atkins for review by the client. 
 
 
G – Cost: This work is currently on budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 142



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

What are we spending? 
 

Total project budget = £0.5m made up of £0.5m LGF 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/18 Total 

£Ms  Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4   

Profile (LGF)  0.382 0.057 0.018  0.043     0.500 

Actual (against LGF)  0.382 0.057 -0.094 0.066 0.058   0.469 

What have we done in the past 2 months? What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 Commence work on the Future Model scenarios to allow scheme 
testing as part of the Business Case development – Task Order 
has been issued to Atkins for this work and the work proposal has 
been received from Atkins for review by the client. 

 Further comments have been received from the DfT on the Base 
Model, and Atkins is reviewing these. 

 
 

 Meeting with the DfT set for 21st March. 

 Implement any further amendments to the 2014 Base 
Model to reflect DfT comments and take account of the 
latest Tempro / NTEM forecasts when these are published 
by DfT – due in February. 

 Agree the work proposal for the forecasting model and 
commence the development of the scenarios. 

Change Control Notification History 

Change Control 1 (CR016) 
Agreed in October 2016 
Changes requested to align with the re-baselining of other NEV schemes to accommodate design and build option 

 

  

P
age 143



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

DFT/1617/004/CSH Chippenham Station Hub Rory Bowen Wiltshire Council 
AG AG 

 

 

Project Description 

Enhancement of station facilities including increased car parking, railway crossing provision, retail facilities and public realm improvements.   

 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 

 

Activity Baseline Date Revised 

Baseline 

Forecast / 

Actual 

Viability assessment  Dec 2016 n/a Dec 2016 

Procurement and commence 
GRIP 4/OBC 

Sep 2016 n/a Feb/Mar 2017 

GWR Phase 1 Business case Mar 2017 n/a Mar 2017 

GWR Phase 1 Delivery 
approval from LEP 

May 2017 n/a May 2017 

Delivery of Outline Business  
Case 

Jan 2017 Jul 2017 Jul 2017 

Planning application 
submitted 

Dec 2016 Aug 2017 Aug 2017 

GWR Phase 1 delivery 
commences 

Nov 2017  Nov 2017 

Full approval application 
submitted to DfT 

May 2017 Nov 2017 Nov 2017 

Start of works Jul 2017 Mar 2018 Mar 2018 

Completion of works Jan 2019 Oct 2019 Oct 2019 

 
 
 
 

 
Programme 

 
AG – GWR Phase 1 delivery via business case to the 
LEP is being developed and will be presented to the 
LEP Board in May for approval. Timescales for this are 
tight, Council officers will work closely with GWR to 
ensure the Business Case is completed in March. 
 
AG – March 2017 forecast for procurement of OBC. 
This will follow delivery of Technical Note from WSP 
Parsons Brinckerhoff. Technical note will clarify 
assumptions and expectations from DfT and steer OBC 
requirements. This milestone has been delayed due as 
the Council are still awaiting feedback from Network 
Rail on the Viability Assessment.  
 
 

P
age 144



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

What are we spending? 
 
Total project budget of £34m is made up of £16m of LGF (DFT Retained) funding, £2m of Wiltshire Council funding (not secured), and £16m 
private sector funding (not secured). 
 

 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/20 Total 

£Ms  Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4     

Profile £0.028m   £0.32m  TBC TBC TBC TBC 

Actual £0.028m £0.032m £0.062m      £0.122m 

 
Total project spend to date: £0.122m 

What have we done in the last month? What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 WSP/GVA delivery of findings on commercial viability  

 Project steering group to consider GVA commercial viability work. 

 WSP Parsons Brinckerhoff working on technical note in relation to 
DfT queries on underlying economic assumptions  

 Work with GWR to develop Phase 1 Delivery business case 

 Provided Q3 return to DFT 
 

 Analyse WSP technical note 

 Procure Outline Business Case 

 Complete GWR Phase 1 Delivery business case and 
present to LEP (May)  

 Additional soft market testing and masterplan work taking 
place which builds on December viability assessments, 
allowing better understanding of the scale of deliverable 
development, the costs, and the appetite of potential 
development partners. 

Change Control Notification History 

 
Change Control 1 (CR004) 
Agreed in March 2016   
Changes to phase 1 schedule. Revised schedule to take into account the development and delivery of the SOBC, OAR, and AST. 
 
Change Control 2 (CR011) 
Agreed in October 2016 
Changes to overall schedule with completion in October 2019. 

  

P
age 145



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Deal 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

P
age 146



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Project Re Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LGF/1516/006/CD Swindon & Wiltshire Higher 
Futures  

Mandy Timbrell LEP Partnership – 
SBC/WC 

AR AR 
 

 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues) 
Milestone Baseline Current 

Forecast 
Date 

Marketing/Communications   

Develop menu for businesses and 
updated collateral for all audiences, 
testing with employers and HEI partners 

October 2016 Complete 

HF website goes live  Feb 2016 Complete 

Business Engagement    

Re-purpose Learner Client Engagement 
adviser role to focus on business 
engagement 

 February 
2017 

February 
2017 

Use new databases to create meaningful 
engagements with businesses 

March 2017 March 2017 

Develop pipeline of learners to engage 
17/18 through levy opportunity 

March 2017 March 17 

Develop relationships with key 
intermediaries to reach micro and SMEs 

Dec 2016 Dec 2016 

Military Engagement    

Meet Army HQ education branch January 2017 Feb 2017 

Review Learner Engagement Strategy January 2017 ON HOLD 

Develop marketing collateral for military 
community 

December 
2016 

Complete 

Identify first cohort of military leavers/ 
spouses / veterans 

March 2017 Complete 

Deliver first courses for military 
community 

April 2017  April 2017 

Learning Providers   

Convene strategic group to develop 
degree apprenticeships 

June 2016 September 
2016 

Engage new providers to ensure demand 
can be met for Serco referrals 

March 2017 March 2017 

 

 
G – Cost: Spend is within profile 
G – Time: Time scales for the revised plan are back to green with 
the team having made significant progress over the last month. 
 
AR – Delivery: Progress being made towards implementation. 
The programme is behind in relation to the achievement of learner 
outputs this financial year, but ahead with business engagement. 
 

 Target Actual 

Learner starts 165 13 

Businesses 
engaged 

35 57 

 
Further issues/risks 

 Membership fees have been a barrier to businesses 
signing up for programme, waiving the fees have led to an 
additional surge of businesses accessing support 

 Lack of learner numbers has led to a reduced learner 
offer, whilst the Learner Client Adviser role is re-purposed. 

 Difficulty in engaging cohorts to meet minimum learner 
numbers in response to Serco referrals. 

P
age 147



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

What are we spending? (Total Project) 
 

 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total 

£Ms  Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4     
Profile (LGF) £0.374m £0.77m £0.075 £0.100m £0.100m £0.337m £0.347m £0.358m £1.768m 

Actual £0.320m £0.078m £0.072m £0.111m     £0.581m 

 
  

What have we done this month (Progress) What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 Attended annual conversation with BEIS December 2016, resulting 
in a proposal for a new programme under development. 

 Developed bespoke provision for H4H which will be an ongoing 
programme for 40 learners delivered by USW at Tedworth House 
over several years. 

 Brokered UWE as the provider for the SBC new Leadership 
academy and secured on-going work with Swindon Borough 
Council supporting the development of a plan to maximise the 
impact of the apprenticeship levy. 

 Re-purposed the LCEA post as a Business development role to 
ensure a steady supply of leads generated for the brokerage team 

 Developed options for a newly defined Higher Futures programme, 
to be signed off by subgroup then presented to SWLEP Board and 
BEIS. 

 Launched our new website www.higherfutureshub.co.uk and have 
achieved 250 visitors in the first month 

 Attended 22 networking events, resulting in 44 leads. Of these we 
had 4 new businesses sign to Higher Futures with potential for 740 
learners to be upskilled over the next 3 years. 
 

 Populate new CRM with data and embed use of system 
into day to day activities – due to complete Feb 28th 2017. 

 Identify other sources of income – e.g. bidding for funding 
to ensure we can continue to provide a service when the 
grant runs out. 

 Write report for SWLEP board based on Subgroup, 
Commissioning Group and BEIS input with proposal for 
new model and outputs  

 Develop new project plan with clearly identified key drivers 
for 2017 based on agreed new programme (End of March 
2017) and finalise budget for 17/18  

 Meeting with Col James Coote to agree military support for 
Higher Futures  

 Delivery of Higher Futures Insight session with ILM in 
March 2017 

 Meetings to understand skills requirements for Boscombe 
Down and develop action plan. 
 
 
 
 

  

P
age 148

http://www.higherfutureshub.co.uk/


 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Careers and Enterprise Company (CEC) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

P
age 149



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

 Swindon & Wiltshire Enterprise 
Adviser Network 

Laura Salter 
(Wiltshire Council) 

Wiltshire Council & 
Swindon Borough 
Council 

G G 
 

 

Project Description 

The Enterprise Adviser Network is coordinating and building lasting connections between business, schools and colleges across the LEP area. 

Volunteer Enterprise Advisers from business work directly with school and college Senior Leadership Team to develop effective employer 

engagement plans ensuring young people have the skills they need to excel in education and life.  

 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 
 

Milestone Baseline Revised 

Baseline (if 

applicable) 

Forecast/Actual 

Yr 2 Q1 (Oct-Dec 16) 

claim and financials 

submitted to C&EC and 

approved 

January 2017  February 2017 - 

complete 

EAN incentive payment 

due. 

March 2017  March 2017 

C&EC Mentoring 

Campaign delivery begins 

February 2017  March 2017 

EAN profile targets 

achieved 

July 2017  July 2017 

    
 

 
G – Programme: The SWEAN continues to lead nationally, 
exceeding locally set targets of schools/colleges engaged 
and Enterprise Advisers recruited with almost full coverage of 
the SWLEP area. Wiltshire Council has restructured and 
retains the same capacity as is currently available to deliver 
SWEAN and an increased management resource to oversee 
it. Increasing resilience is a key priority in the restructure to 
ensure that continuity can be ensured for future delivery. 
Changes in staff are being managed through full handovers 
and introductions to key contacts.  The Swindon BC 
Enterprise Coordinator will be moving on from end of 
February and every effort will be made to ensure continuity of 
service. 
 
G – Cost: Year 2 Quarter 1- £23,088 Grant Claim & £3,072 
from start-up fund. 1st Claim for Q1 Year 2 submitted end of 
Jan 2017 and approved (16.2.17) .Ensuring all EC’s remain in 
post, an incentive payment of £25,000 will also be available in 
March 2017 to support the expansion of the EAN. 

P
age 150



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

AG – Scope: Programme delivery underway since January 
2016. 16/17 funding and LA MATCH in place for Yr 2 delivery 
up to 31.8.17.  

What are we spending? 

 
Overall spend for project is now £201,660 (Including Year 2 Quarter 1- £23,088 Grant Claim & £3,072 from Kick Start fund)  
 

 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/18 Total 

£s  Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4   

Profile  180,000 25,000   -  205,000 

Actual  175,500 23,088     201,660 

What have we done in the past 2 months? What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 EA delivered employability workshops at Devizes School – 200 Yr 9 
students 

 Blue Flame Digital digital simulations/VR workshop at SWGS - 150 Yr 
9 students  

 National coffee club webinars offered for EA CPD  (monthly from Jan) 

 Q1 Year 2 financial claim & activity reporting submitted (Jan 17) and 
approved (Feb 17) 

 EA forum in Swindon for Swindon & Wiltshire EA’s (Feb) 

 SWEAN programme management meeting (Feb) 

 JobFest preparations completed in Swindon – 65+ employers and 
providers confirmed (Feb) 

 Bradon Forest school joined EAN (Feb) 

 EAN Wiltshire schools networking opportunity (Feb). This was 
requested by schools but unfortunately cancelled due to low take-up. 
Future networking opportunities to be provided. 

 Ongoing discussions/support to CSW Group with implementation of 
CEC Business Mentoring roll-out across SWLEP to schools. 

 Employer engagement networking event in Wiltshire (Feb) 

 Nationwide Financial Awareness sessions (Mar) - 750 
students to benefit (Wiltshire) 

 CSW Group implementation of CEC Mentoring Campaign 

 EA recruitment for target schools/remaining gaps (e.g. CIPD) 

 Sign-off risk and communications plan  

 Q2 Year 2 financial claim & activity reporting (Mar) 

 Monitoring and reporting to SWLEP Board (Apr), Skills & 
Talent Sub group, C&EC EAN Registers (monthly). 

 

P
age 151



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 Draft, on-line work experience placement tool, created by an EA, 
shared with EAs, 5+ businesses signed up to trial. 

 Targeted EA recruitment underway for remaining gaps. 

 1:1 work with priority schools/EA’s & EC’s - completing needs analysis/ 
developing effective employer engagement strategy/increased 
business engagement and activities to complement the EAN. 

Change Control Notification History 

N/A  

  

P
age 152



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 

 

 

 

 

Department of Business Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 153



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LEP/GEN/002/GH 
 

Growth Hub Ian Durston LEP 
AG AR 

 

 

Project Description 

Provision of an online portal to sign post businesses to relevant business support provision in the area, both from the private and public sector.  
Supplemented by number of business support services from Unitary Authorities with Growth Hub portal acting as ‘umbrella’. 

 
 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 
 

Milestone Baseline Forecast/Actual 

LEP Marketing Manager in place Sept 2016 Sept 2016 

ESIF SME Growth project starts 1 Nov 2016 1 Nov 2016 

Complete Portal Project Manager 

Commissioning 

Oct 2016 Dec 2016 

Complete Spec for portal development Nov 2016 Feb 2016 

Complete procurement process to 

appoint portal development contractor 

Dec 2016 Mar 2016 

Submit portal development proposal to 

Commissioning Group  

Mar 2017 Mar 2017 

Begin portal development work Mar 2017 Mar 2017 

Go Live of first stage of new portal Jun 2017 Jun 2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
G – Delivery to date: Delivery during 15/16 was in partnership 
with Inspire who managed portal and marketing plus face to face 
service (through Wiltshire Business Support Service Contract).  
 
AG – Delivery Going Forward: Focus on development of more 
interactive portal using BEIS funding.  RIKA Digital have produced 
a proposal to be reviewed at Commissioning Group.  Also 
proposing that LEP recruits Growth Hub Manager and Business 
Advisor as part of 2017/18 budget. 
 
AR – Cost – Struggling to defray all of 2016/17 budget by end of 
March.  Working with BEIS to address.  
 
 

P
age 154



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

What are we spending? 
 

 
 

 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/18 Total 

£Ms  Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4   

Profile (BEIS) 0.25 0.027 0.041 0.0685 0.0685 0.205 0.66 

Actual (against BEIS) 0.25 0.021 0.010 0.009 0.034  0.32 

What have we done in the past 2 months? What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 RIKA Digital produced proposal for updated Growth Hub portal 

 Event for 23 March organised 
 

 Continue current portal maintenance 

 Purchase software for updated Growth Hub portal 

 Begin development work for updated Growth Hub portal 

 Run 23 March event 
 
 

 
 
  

P
age 155



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 

 

 

 

Growing Places Infrastructure Fund (GPIF) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 156



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LEP/GPIF/001/CAS 
 

GPIF – Castledown Business 
Park 

Scott Anderson Wiltshire Council 
G G 

 

 

Project Description 

Development of latest phases of 33 acre Castledown Business Park in Ludgershall (office, industrial and warehouse uses). 

 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 
 

Milestone Baseline Forecast/Actual 

Repayment of loan to LEP TBA  

   
 

 
G – Status: £2.54m loan paid to project in 2014/15.  Payment 
back to LEP originally scheduled for 2015/16 but LEP Board 
agreed at March 2016 Board Meeting that loan will be repaid 
when funding is required to satisfy the drawdown requirements of 
other projects as they come forward.   

What are we spending? 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Outgoing loan has been issued 

                     £Ms 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Outgoing Loan  2.54    

Repayment TBD    

What have we done in the past 2 months? What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 None 
 

 None 
 
 

  

P
age 157



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LEP/GPIF/002/KIM 
 

GPIF – Kimmerfields Deborah Heenan Forward Swindon 
AR AR 

 

 

Project Description 

Regrading of  Fleming Way in order to extend the Central Business District in Swindon town centre as part of the Kimmerfields development.   

 
 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 
 

Milestone Baseline Forecast/Actual 

Enter Developer Agreement Dec 2016 TBA 

Issue Loan to FSL Jan 2017 TBA 
 

 
AR – Status: £4.5m funding agreement has been signed, but 
release of monies is dependent on recipient entering into their 
own funding agreement with a developer by the end of 2016.  A 
request from Swindon Borough Council has been granted to defer 
this requirement to March 2018.   

What are we spending? 
 

 
Outgoing loan has not been issued – profile requires revision 
 

                     £Ms 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

Outgoing Loan  0.15 0.384 1.866 2.1      

Repayment      1.0 1.0 1.0 1.5 

What have we done in the past 2 months? What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 None 
 

 Determine if loan still required, and if so, what profiling 
looks like 

  

P
age 158



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LEP/GPIF/003/PL 
 

GPIF – Park Lane Corsham Scott Anderson Bath ASU 
AG AR 

 

 

Project Description 

Development of facilities at Bath ASU - a pharmaceutical company based in Corsham.  

 
 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 
 

Milestone Baseline Forecast/Actual 

Complete Funding Agreement Aug 2016 TBA 

Issue Loan to Bath ASU Sept 2016 TBA 
 

 
AG – Status: £1.85m loan requested.  Delays have been 
experienced in signing the funding agreement due to issues with 
the security provided by the recipient. Funding agreement details are 
being discussed with Bath ASU.   

What are we spending? 
 
 

 
Outgoing loan has not been issued 

                     £Ms 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

Outgoing Loan  1.85         

Repayment   0.65 0.6 0.6     

What have we done in the past 2 months? What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 Ongoing discussions with Bath ASU 
 

 Sign funding agreement 

 Issue loan to Bath ASU 
 

  

P
age 159



 
LEP Programmes 
Highlight Report to Commissioning Group (8 March 2017)  

 

 

 

 

SWLEP LGF Programme Highlight Report – collated by Ian Durston 14.03.17                                                                                                      
 

Project Ref Project Name Project Manager Lead Delivery Partner Previous Current Direction 

LEP/GPIF/004/WCH 
 

GPIF – Wichelstowe (Jnc 16) Tim Mann Swindon Borough 
Council 

AG AR 
 

 

Project Description 

Major improvements to M4 junction 16 slip roads and approaches in order to support delivery of Wichelstowe housing development..   

 
 

What does our path look like? (Milestones) Are we on track? (Issues/Risks) 
 

Milestone Baseline Forecast/Actual 

Complete Funding Agreement Aug 2016 TBA 

Issue Loan to Swindon Borough Council Sept 2016 TBA 
 

 
AG – Status: £2.5m loan requested.  There have been issues 
with the recipient over the complexity of the required funding 
agreement. A more simplified version is being looked at with 
discussions taking place between recipient and Ashfords.  
Swindon Borough Council may have other competitive sources of 
funding open to them.    

What are we spending? 
 
 

 
Outgoing loan has not been issued – profile requires revision 

 

                     £Ms 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 

Outgoing Loan  1.17 1.33        

Repayment     2.5     

What have we done in the past 2 months? What do we need to do in the next 2 months (Actions) 

 None 
 

 Determine if loan still required, and if so, what profiling 
looks like  

 

P
age 160



 

 

 

 
 

Joint Strategic Economic 

Committee  

13 April 2017 
 

 

 

Security Level: Confidential  Restricted  Unclassified  Commercially Sensitive  

 

 

Meeting & Date: Joint Strategic Economic Committee – Thursday, 13 April 2017 

Subject: Subgroup reports: 

 Skills and Talent 

 Transport Infrastructure 

 Digital Capability 

 Place-shaping 

 Business Development 

Attachments: None 

Author: Subgroup Chairs and 

Lead Officers 

Total no of sheets: 

 

9 

 

Papers are provided for:    Approval     Discussion     Information   

 

Summary & Recommendation: 

 

Summary 

1. This is a composite report providing an update on the progress of the Subgroups as they prepare 

their action plans.  At the meeting on 22 March 2017, the Board agreed to a budget of £250,000 for 

Subgroup activity.  The total estimated expenditure is £300,000 so negotiations are ongoing. 

2. The current estimated expenditure on Subgroup activity in 2017-18 is as follows: 

 

Skills and Talent 

 

Transport 
Infrastructure 

Digital Capability 

 

Place-shaping 

 

Business 
Development 

£65,000 £135,000 £25,000 £25,000 £50,000 

Current total estimate  £300,000 

 

3. As part of the approval process in March, the Board had additional information to take into 

consideration including the proposed 2017-18 SWLEP core budget and details of the Industrial 

Strategy from Government, which, due to its national and local significance, the SWLEP needed to 

take into consideration as part of prioritising spending for 2017-18. 

Page 161

Agenda Item 8



 

 

 

 
 

Joint Strategic Economic 

Committee  

13 April 2017 
 

 
4. Skills and Talent 

4.1 Subgroup meetings: An additional meeting took place on 10 January 2017 to complete the 

draft Skills & Talent Action Plan.  

4.2 Finalising the Skills & Talent Strategy and completing the Action Plan.  

The Skills and Talent Strategy was commissioned as part of the preparation for the Post-16 

Review to provide the evidence base and SWOT Analysis to drive the recommendations in 

the review and to support delivery of the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) priorities.  

The draft Action Plan identifies the specific actions that will take place through the LEP with a 

focus on activity that will add value to that which is already taking place.  

The table below outlines the draft proposed key actions against each of the SEP priorities and 

highlights the approximate funding that would be required. 

 

SEP Priority Action  Activity Funding 

Priority Action 1:Improve the skills system 

Ensure there is a robust and responsive post- 

16 education system 

Oversee recommendations from the post- 

16 review (to be confirmed in February.  

2017. 

a) Research/evidence base to inform 

 Higher Education (all Level 4+ 
provision) demand and future 

options to grow provision 

 Annual key evidence to inform 

how well local provision is aligning 

with the LEP Priorities and key 

outcomes for residents. Gap 

analysis. 

 Demand and supply of skills and 

Apprenticeships across key sectors  

 Approach to delivering national 

Skills Plan and 15 technical 

pathways. 

b) Resources to raise the profile of LEP 

priority sectors and local employment 

opportunities including focus on STEM. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

£30, 000 

Priority Action 2: Skills for Growth 

2.1 Develop a skilled and competitive 

workforce meeting the needs of employers 

2.3. Achieve a higher proportion of Individuals 

employed in higher skilled and higher value 

added roles.  

 

Refer a) and b) above 

 

Develop and agree the LEP wide HE 

Strategy (Refer a) re evidence base). 

Deliver the Apprenticeship Growth 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 162



 

 

 

 
 

Joint Strategic Economic 

Committee  

13 April 2017 
 

 

SEP Priority Action  Activity Funding 

2.4 Embed Apprenticeships as an established 

route to employment 

Strategy 

c) Communication and Marketing Plan 

and activity to promote 

Apprenticeships to residents, 

employers and support 

implementation of levy. 

 

 

£25,000 

Priority Action 3: Skills for Inclusion  

3.1 Improve educational attainment, exceeding 

the national average at 16 and 19. 

3.2 Realise the potential of residents with 

barriers to employment including young 

people and older workers 

 

d) Develop pilot programme to work 

with primary schools to raise 

aspirations and link to STEM. 

e) Identify work in other LEPs to improve 

English and Maths, involving employers.  

 

 

 

£10,000 

  Total 

£65,000 

 

5. Transport Infrastructure 

5.1 The Transport Infrastructure Subgroup has met to date: on 13 October 2016, 7 December 

2016 and 1 March 2017.  Chaired by Adam Schallamach with the Lead Officer, Parvis 

Khansari, other attendees have been made up of SWLEP, Swindon Borough Council and 

Wiltshire Council officers. 

5.2 The agendas for the meetings have included the following items: 

 the SWLEP Subgroups Terms of Reference; 

 membership of the Subgroup; 

 action plan; and 

 SWLEP Rail Strategy. 

5.3 The SWLEP Subgroups Terms of Reference document was presented by the Lead Officer at 

the initial meeting.  While generally agreed, two requirements of the Terms of Reference 

need to be addressed.  Firstly, the post of Vice-Chair is currently vacant.  The Chair is liaising 

with other Board members to address this requirement.  Secondly, three businesses 

representatives need to be identified to sit on the Subgroup to assist the Chair and Vice-

Chair.  The Lead Officer is currently working to identify suitable representatives.  At the same 

time, the potential role of a wider transport stakeholder group will be investigated. 

5.4 A draft action plan was presented to and agreed by the Subgroup on 7 December with the 

following key actions, costs and timescales (summarised below) to March 2018: 

 

SEP Priority Action  Activity Funding 

Page 163



 

 

 

 
 

Joint Strategic Economic 

Committee  

13 April 2017 
 

 

Priority action 1: Deliver key road junction 
and infrastructure improvements to support 

economic and planned development growth 

 

Commission a strategic transport study 
for the SWLEP area to identify the 

transport infrastructure improvements 

required to deliver planned economic and 

housing growth to 2036. 

£50,000 

Priority action 4: Deliver rail capacity and 

connectivity improvements to support 

economic growth and help realise improved 

travel opportunities 

 

Commission a ‘Swindon & Wiltshire Rail 

Strategy’ that will support and inform rail 

requirements in the SWLEP area. 

£50,000 

West of England Line Strategy Group 
timetable study. 

£5,000 

Priority action 5: Lobby Government to 
address the unreliability of north-south road 

connections in the sub-region to support 

development and business growth both across 

Swindon and Wiltshire, and in neighbouring 

LEP areas 

With BANES Council and Dorset County 
Council, secure inclusion of a Wessex 

(A350 / A36) North - South Connectivity 

Study within Highways England's Roads 

Investment Strategy 2 programme. 

£10,000 

Support Highway England to commission 
and develop a transport study as required 

to support Action 5.1. 

£10,000 

Priority action 6:  Lobby Government and 
work with Highways England, Network Rail, 

train operating companies and other key 

bodies to improve key strategic routes to the 

Midlands and south coast ports, Cardiff, 

Bristol and the Thames Valley, London and 

South East, and South West 

Working jointly with other SW LEPs and 
local authorities, lobby the National 

Infrastructure Commission to review 

strategic infrastructure requirements to 

deliver future growth across the West of 

England. 

£10,000 

  Total 
£135,000 

 

5.5 Other required actions falling outside of the March 2018 timeframe, including the action 

below (which could commence in 2017/18 but would extend beyond March 2018), have also 

been included in the action plan to more clearly map out future work stream needs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SEP Priority Action Activity Cost  

Page 164



 

 

 

 
 

Joint Strategic Economic 

Committee  

13 April 2017 
 

 

Priority action 6:  Lobby Government and 
work with Highways England, Network Rail, 

train operating companies and other key 

bodies to improve key strategic routes to the 

Midlands and south coast ports, Cardiff, 

Bristol and the Thames Valley, London and 

South East, and South West 

In partnership with the NIC, commission 
strategic transport studies as required to 

provide an evidence base for the strategic 

transport infrastructure requirements. 

£30,000 

 

6. Digital Capability 

6.1 Commissioned work 

 

Commission the production of a digital technologies strategy to deliver the SWLEP’s visions 

and direct the work of the Digital Technologies Subgroup.  This work could be undertaken as 

five different pieces or work with some phasing or as a single commission to: 

Phase 1: 

Undertake gap analysis in the provision of superfast and ultrafast broadband and compare 

provision with similar LEPs working with Wiltshire Online and Swindon in order to influence 

plans for the rollout of ultrafast broadband delivery to support access business.  Produce as a 

series of maps. 

Identify key contacts within ultrafast providers and Government and lobby to maximise 

rollout for business 

Phase 2:  

Identify the strengths and constraints of the Swindon and Wiltshire in terms of: 

o the application of digital technologies to transform the economy and drive 

productivity growth; 

o the existing digital technologies business base; and 

o set the framework for a digital technologies business networking group to 

maximise investment opportunities. 

Identify those digital technologies skills which businesses lack which can support 
competitiveness and productivity improvements and propose how these can be effectively 

addressed in Swindon and Wiltshire drawing on national or international examples of best 

practice. 

o Produce a workforce development plan 

 

Work with the Business Development and Skills and Talent Subgroups 

Phase 3 

Develop a digital technologies inward investment proposition for use by partners to promote 

Swindon and Wiltshire as the best business location in the UK and internationally. 

Phase 4 

Page 165



 

 

 

 
 

Joint Strategic Economic 

Committee  

13 April 2017 
 

 
Identify examples of best practice in public sector transformation which could be realistically 

delivered across Swindon and Wiltshire through the use of digital technologies to improve 

efficiency; support productivity and data sharing. 

6.2 Estimated cost 

 The estimated cost to commission the digital technology strategy is currently £25,000. 

 

7. Place-shaping 

 

SEP Priority Action Activity Cost  

Priority action 1:  Deliver the investment 

needed to accelerate the delivery of strategic 

housing and employment sites to ensure that 

growth is accommodated sustainably 

Interactive list of sites setting out timing 

for delivery and deliverability status. 

£0 

In kind 

support Track and map private sector 
development which has taken place each 

year (UA databases published 1st April 

each year). 

Map where and how much S106/CIL 
funding has been allocated for investment. 

Priority action 2:  Deliver infrastructure 
improvements to support economic growth, 

support higher value skilled employment and 

attract inward investment 

Engage with the Transport Subgroup to 
understand where there is cross over with 

their work and with the Local Plans to 

deliver this action. 

£0 

Priority action 3:  Develop increased energy 
infrastructure resilience for businesses and 

residents 

 

Subgroup briefing on the capacity of the 
national grid to support the economic 

growth.  Recommendations to be taken to 

the SWLEP Board 

£0 

In kind 

support 

Link to National Infrastructure 
Commission call for ideas submitted by 

the six south west LEPs on smart power 

Priority action 4:  Deliver the master plans for 
the regeneration of Chippenham, Salisbury, 

Swindon and Trowbridge to deliver a strong 

economic, cultural, leisure and visitor offer 

Subgroup briefing on the masterplans for 
Chippenham, Salisbury, Trowbridge and 

Swindon.  Recommendations to be taken 

to the SWLEP Board 

£0 

In kind 

support 

Priority action 5:  Support the sustainable 

development of market towns and rural 

communities to ensure the right economic, 

social and visitor infrastructure is in place to 

ensure their long term resilience and safeguard 

their attractiveness 

Commission research into the economic 

contribution of the cultural sector 

(including Creative Industries) across 

Swindon and Wiltshire in order to identify 

options for driving economic growth in 

the future linked to the review of the 

Local Plans for Swindon and Wiltshire. 

£25,000 

 

Page 166



 

 

 

 
 

Joint Strategic Economic 

Committee  

13 April 2017 
 

 

SEP Priority Action Activity Cost  

Priority action 6:  Deliver the Army Basing 
Programme as an exemplar of successful 

military-civilian integration;  

 

Briefing to the Subgroup on the Army 
Basing programme to understand its 

impact on the economy and SEP delivery.  

Recommendations to the Board 

£0 

In kind 

support 

Priority action 7:   Develop a strong Visitor 
Economy resulting in new investment as well 

as increased trade, visitor spend and national 

and international staying visitors 

Subgroup briefing on the three pieces of 
work funded by the SWLEP on the Visitor 

Economy.  Recommendations to the 

Board 

£0 

In kind 

support 

  Total 
£25,000 

 

8. Business Development 

8.1 The Subgroup is proposing a structure to manage the work in this area.  The Business 

Development Subgroup would oversee a sub-structure of working groups, each of which is 

addressing an area of work. 

 Business support  

o Growth Hub 

o SME Growth Programme 

o Innovate to Succeed 

o Export for Growth 

o The Enterprise Network and other incubation centres 

o Link to Skills and Talent Subgroup – workforce development 

 

 Sector Development 

o Rural Economy  

o High Value Manufacturing 

o Life Sciences 

o Visitor Economy/Culture and Arts 

o Low carbon 

o Others on “ones to watch list” 

o Link to Digital Capability Subgroup 

 Inward Investment 

o Link to Depart of International Trade and Service Delivery in Local Authorities 

o Link to Place-shaping Subgroup – place marketing 

 Strategic Funding 

o Development of open call mechanism 

o Growing Places Infrastructure Fund 

o Link to ESIF Advisory Committee 

Page 167



 

 

 

 
 

Joint Strategic Economic 

Committee  

13 April 2017 
 

 
8.2 In addition, the Subgroup will facilitate a regular “keep in touch” meeting with business 

representative groups across the area including the Federation of Small Business, the Chambers 

of Commerce, The Business Improvement Districts and key business-to-business enterprises. 

8.3 The draft action plan is as follows: 

 

SEP Priority Activity Cost 

Priority action 1: Business Support 

 

Deliver the Swindon and Wiltshire 

Growth Hub to support the needs of 

SMEs 

Covered 

by 

Growth 
Hub 

funding 

and the 

ESIF SME 

Growth 

Program

me 

Address the low rates of business 

formation by improving access to specialist 

public and private business support 

providers 

Support the Government’s aspiration that 

25% of public sector contracts are fulfilled 

by SMEs 

Priority action 2: Inward Investment 

 

Develop (or commission?) a Swindon and 

Wiltshire Inward Investment and Place 

Marketing Plan  

£30,000 

Develop an inward investment service 

delivery plan for Swindon and Wiltshire 

based on securing £500,000 ESIF funding 

for service delivery. 

 

Priority action 2: Inward Investment 

 

Establish a central SWLEP inward 

investment resource  

£10,000 

Develop internationally recognised 
clusters of Digital Technologies and Life 

Sciences activity by building premises, 

capacity and linkages between research 

and development and manufacturing 

capabilities 

 

Strengthen the Advanced Manufacturing 
sector supply chain. 

 

Priority action 3:  Smart specialisation 

 

Develop Swindon and Wiltshire as a 

nationally significant player in the UK’s 

energy sector, with particular strengths in 

the low carbon energy generation sector 

and the application of hydrogen 

 

Page 168



 

 

 

 
 

Joint Strategic Economic 

Committee  

13 April 2017 
 

 

SEP Priority Activity Cost 

technologies 

Support smart specialisation and 
innovation in our priority sectors as the 

drivers of economic growth 

Priority action 4:   Business sector 
development strategy 

 

Develop overarching framework for all 
business sector development strategies 

 

Implement a programme to deliver 
strategies for priority and watching brief 

business sectors 

Extend the membership of the Business 
Development Subgroup to include the 

Sector Development Group lead, 

representatives from Influence Swindon 

and Enterprise Wiltshire. 

Deliver an annual SWLEP business 
conference/event 

£10,000 

Produce a regular SWLEP business 

newsletter, frequency TBC 

 

  Total 

£50,000 

 

 

Recommendation 

 

The Joint Strategic Economic Committee is recommended to endorse the decision of the 

SWLEP Board to approve the General Account budget including the £250,000 allocated to 

Subgroup expenditure. 

Page 169



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Joint Strategic Economic 

Committee  

13 April 2017 

 

Security Level: Confidential  Restricted  Unclassified  Commercially 
Sensitive   

 

Meeting & Date: Joint Strategic Economic Committee Meeting – 13 April 2017 

Subject: European Structural and Investment Funds Programme 2014-2020 

Attachments: None 

Author: Julian Head Total no of sheets: 
 

6 

 

Papers are provided for:    Approval     Discussion     Information   

 

Summary & Recommendation: 

Programme Update 

The Rural Development Programme for England (RDPE) Growth Programme was launched by 

the Rural Payments Agency (RPA) in January.  On 8 February 2017 the SWLEP held its Rural 

Business Grants event at Devizes Corn Exchange to promote the £3.4m programme funding 

currently available in grants for rural business projects.  Over 140 businesses heard about the 

programme, and met with business support organisations and the LEADER programmes.  

On 5 April 2017, the ESIF sub-Committee gave advice to the Managing Authority on the three 

ERDF Low Carbon calls.  Eight applications were received for the £5m funding: - proposals 

included projects to deliver intermediary support service for SME energy efficiency; new 

technologies for smarter distribution and storage of renewable energy linked to employment 

land and waste sites; and whole-place solutions in new housing developments.  Following the 

sub-Committee’s advice, full applications are now in progress. 

ESIF Sub-Committee 

Two new members have joined the group – an employee representative from Unit, and the new 
Job Centre manager in Swindon.  Vacancies still exist for higher education and equalities 

representatives. 

Forward Look 

The start of the Article 50 process for leaving the EU provides more certainty for the ESIF 

programmes.  Projects must be contracted before the end of March 2019 and fit with domestic 

priorities.  Locally, a pragmatic approach is being taken by the partners with calls in development 

so that the area maximises the opportunities from ESIF over coming years. 

Programme performance 

European Social Fund (ESF)  

Almost 75% of the ESF allocation has been contracted to providers to support people and 

businesses, through workforce skills, employability training and for social inclusion support.  Both 

Page 171

Agenda Item 9



 

 

 

 

 

Joint Strategic Economic 

Committee  

13 April 2017 

 
Local Authorities are actively working with the SWLEP and directly with providers to ensure 

that targeted groups and particular places receive services.  

 The SFA projects for NEETs, over-60s, workforce skills and for careers aspiration are under 

pressure to deliver large allocations in a short time frame period ending in July 2018.  

 Providers are now reporting quarterly performance, with NEET provision falling behind 
profile.  

 Some bedding down between commercial and non-commercial providers is still necessary.  

 It is expected that the SFA will shortly complete its change request, effectively refunding the 

unused allocation to Swindon and Wiltshire so that the calls can be made to invest the entire 

allocation  

ESF Programme summary (full project summary appears at end of paper) 

ESF – Committed funds  

Allocation 
Contracted 

amount 

% of 

allocation 

contracted 

Remaining 

allocation1 

Priority 1 Inclusive Labour 

Markets 
£9.07m £7.75m 85% £1.32m 

Priority 2 Skills for 

Growth  
£7.85m £4.89m 62% £2.96m 

Total  £16.92 £12.64m 74% £4.28m 

European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) 

Six projects are active – the Porton Science Incubator is under construction and due to open in 

December 2017 – slightly later than planned. 

The SME Growth project has seen delivery partners Cool Ventures, Inspire, BusinessWest and 
Oxford Innovations join Wiltshire Council, Swindon Borough Council and The Enterprise 

Network to begin to provide a range of advice and support services to SMEs.  This major project 

joins the LMAP Manufacturing, Innovate2Succeed, Export for Growth and Health & Life Sciences 

Hub projects in linking to Swindon and Wiltshire Growth Hub.  

The ERDF has committed around 66% now that the Low Carbon proposals have passed to full 

application stage and at least three more projects will be active once contracted by late summer 

2017. 

Development work on future calls and to support the repositioned Growth Hub is being 

supported by the Technical Assistance (TA) project as part of its work to support ERDF 

programme.  

 

 

                                                      
1
 Subject to future £:€ exchange rate and change request by Skills Funding Agency. Page 172



 

 

 

 

 

Joint Strategic Economic 

Committee  

13 April 2017 

 
ERDF programme summary (full project summary appears at end of paper) 

ERDF – Committed funds  

Allocation 
Committed 

to contracts 

% of 

allocation 

contracted 

Remaining 

allocation2 

Priority 1 Research & 

development 
£6.72m £4m 59% £2.72m 

Priority 3 SME 

Competitiveness 
£4.78m £2.21m 71% £2.57m 

Priority 4 Low Carbon  £5.43m £5m 92% £0.43m 

Total  £16.95m £11.21m 66% £5.72m 

 

RDPE Growth Programme (European Agricultural Fund for Rural Development) 

Following the launch of RDPE Growth Programme, the SWLEP is setting-up a rural assessment 

sub-group of the ESIF sub-Committee to provide regular advice to the RPA on the strategic fit of 
proposals.  This is aimed at speeding-up decision-making for full investment of our allocation in 

the area. 

Future programming 

ESIF is entering into its final two-year period of disbursing EU-funds.  The nominal ‘Brexit’ date in 

late March 2019 it is expected to signal the end of EU-funding of projects.  After that date the 

government will invest HM Treasury funds for any ESIF contracted projects that are also 

‘consistent with domestic priorities’. 

Discouragement from government to plan for calls after January 2018 has influenced local 

partners to allocate as much programme funds for calls in 2017, and work is underway to 

determine a range of calls. 

The remaining financial allocation is split across a number of investment priorities which may not 

fit with the locally articulated needs for future investment of ESIF – particularly ESF monies. 

Local partners and the ERDF Managing Authority are looking at ways to resolve how existing 

three-year projects can be replaced with new projects in accordance with ESIF Strategy 

implementation for projects to run for 6 - 7 years (2015 – 2021).  To date, ERDF projects have 

been constrained to three-year contracts, with three potentially repeatable projects due to end 

after March 2019.  This work is combined with the development of successor programmes to 

avoid a cliff-edge for support to start-up businesses, for business research and innovation and for 

skills and training after March 2019. 

The Industrial Strategy is at the centre of the government’s emerging economic development 

policy and covers many similar themes as ESIF.  It should therefore be regarded as stating 

‘domestic priorities’ and forthcoming ESIF calls are being aligned to emerging Industrial Strategy. 

 

                                                      
2
 Subject to future £:€ exchange rate  Page 173



 

 

 

 

 

Joint Strategic Economic 

Committee  

13 April 2017 

 
ERDF – future calls summary 

 Research and innovation infrastructure  

 Digital Hub 

 Workspace – SME focus 

 Strategic inward investment service 

 Business support package 

ESF – future calls summary  

 Apprenticeships Hub 

 Skills Brokerage 

 SEND / Care-leavers employment & careers project 

 Raising Aspirations 

 Supporting for adults into work 

This work is being developed by small working groups and the SWLEP secretariat, with sub-

groups and other stakeholders. 

Page 174



 

 

 

Joint Strategic Economic Committee  

13 April 2017 

 

Full information on current funded and contracted ESIF projects 

Full ERDF implementation Provider ERDF Commitment 2016 2017 2018 2019 
Remaining 

amounts 

  ERDF Priority 1  - Promoting Research and Innovation  

1 Porton Science Incubator  - Wiltshire Council £3,000,000 01-Feb December   

£2,726,732 
2 Innovate 2 Succeed EEN/ BusinessWest £500,000 01- June   01-Jun 

3 Health & Life science Hub 
Wiltshire Council/ 

AHSNs 
£500,000 21-Nov   Nov 

  ERDF Priority 3 - Enhancing the Competitiveness of SMEs  

4 SME Growth 
Wiltshire Council/ 

Swindon Borough  
£1,200,000 17 -Nov   Nov 

£2,573,804 5 Export for Growth 
DIT (UKTI) / 

BusinessWest 
£599,883 01-Aug   01-Aug 

6 
Manufacturing Programme 

(LMAP) 
SWMAS £414,665 01-Apr   30-Jun 

  ERDF Priority 4 - Supporting the shift towards a low carbon economy in all sectors  

7 Energy efficiency for businesses Confidential information  £500,000  
Calls have closed and projects are 

likely to begin in late summer 2017 

and continue for 1 - 3 years – 

potentially into 2020 

£436,151 

(all held 

subject to 

2018 

Performance 

review) 

8 Enabling Renewables Markets Confidential information £2.250,000  

9 Low Carbon built environment Confidential information £2.250,000  

P
age 175



 

 

 

Joint Strategic Economic Committee  

13 April 2017 

 

Full ESF implementation CFO / Provider 
ESF 

Commitment 
2016 2017 2018 2019 

Remaining 

amounts 

ESF Priority 1.1 - Access to employment for job seekers and inactive people 

1 Links to Work  
DWP /  

Working Links 
£3,000,000 

Start  

09 Jan 2017 
  Sept 2019 

£397,472 

 
2 Older50s support SFA / LearnDirect £950,000 

Start due 

November 
 31 July  

ESF Priority 1.2 - Labour market integration of young people 

3 
 Your Time 

NEET young people skills  coaching 
SFA / LearnDirect £999,389 

Start  

01-Apr 
 31 July  

£727,372 

4 
Raising Aspiration 

(NEET & IAG) 
SFA / CSW £800,000 

Start due 

November 
 31 July  

ESF Priority 1.4 - Active inclusion & participation 

5 
Building Bridges – promoting Social 

inclusion 

Big Lottery / 

Community First 
£2,000,000 Start 01-July   July 2019 £197,183 

ESF Priority 2.1 - Lifelong learning for all age groups 

6 Skills support for the Workforce  SFA / Serco £4,445,229 
Start due 

November 
 31 July  

£2,962,922 

7 
Raising Aspiration 

(EET & Employment) 
SFA / CSW £444,444 

Start due 

November 
 31 July  

 Projects 4 and 7 are the same project – but joining two investment priorities into a single ‘hybrid’ project 

 SFA contracts are to be extended to July 2018 subject to agreement of projects 

P
age 176


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	5 Public Participation
	Response to CPRE 140217

	SWLEP FINAL APPROVED Board Minutes 25012017
	SWLEP FINAL APPROVED Board Minutes 25012017 V4
	1.3 SWLEP submitted questions emailed to members ahead and also handed out at meeting
	supplementary questions Jan 2017
	Chippenham Station Presentation SWLEP Board Jan 2017


	6 SWLEP Governance Framework
	Governance Framework JSEC cover sheet 130417
	Quick guide to the Goveranance Framework Feb 17 210216
	Governance Framework amendments cover table 280217
	Final draft SWLEP governance framework 090317

	7 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Commissioning Board Updates
	8 SWLEP SubGroup Update Reports
	9 European Structural and Investment Funds Programme 2014-2020

